Relm R

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-)\F+=-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
FEUA Interest income 7 1,229,710 902,333
B H Interest expense 8 (693,501) (394,755)
AR E WA Net interest income 536,209 507,578
BRI R R B AN Net premiums earned 9 3,157,652 352,414
HAbKA Other income 10 249,633 414,484
ZEWA Operating income 3,943,494 1,274,476
R4 28 ENFIER Net claims incurred, benefits paid and
REFHANGED) movement in policyholders’ liabilities 9 (3,321,037) 641)
Fe BT RAETRST H Net commission and levy expenses 9 (142,991) (140,454)
ZES M Operating expenses 11 (412,388) (304,196)
RITREFNEERT Operating profit before impairment 67,078 829,185
YRR &= Charge of impairment allowances 14 (134) (453)
BRBE BR R Profit before taxation 66,944 828,732
T I Taxation 15(a) 59,614 (22,337)
AR BT Profit for the year 126,558 806,395

A
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RETE W&
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-)\F+=-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FET FABTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
I JE 5 A Profit for the year 126,558 806,395
Hitt RS : Other comprehensive income:
HEAERDLERE Items that are or may be reclassified
IR : subsequently to profit or loss:
A EIES ¢ Available-for-sale securities:
— R U — net unrealised gains - 191,162
— HENQFEEIEA — fair value changes transferred to
Wk income statement on disposal 13 - (83,161)
— I — tax effect 15(b) - 17,195
AR FEZAIT AE M2 H Debt securities at fair value through
W B RSIUES other comprehensive income:
— NFEED) — change in the fair value (7,182) -
— SR RED) — change in the loss allowance 14 14 -

NEFHMSE(5) /IS - Other comprehensive (loss)/income

BEHBRTIN for the year, net of tax (7,168) 125,196
AEELEKE B Total comprehensive income for
the year 119,390 931,591

F166E 282l NGAWEIREMN—5E0  The notes on pages 166 to 282 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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RE M SRR IR
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F==-)\F+=BA=+—H

as

at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
TET FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
"= ASSETS
NeRkEPrRe Cash and short-term funds 16 29,390,855 25,278,190
RIF B R CR Interest and remittance receivables 17 437,919 343,978
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 18 161,047 333,727
TR E 28 Loan portfolio, net 19 6,442,064 7,829,441
MEHIRR Investment securities:
— A RATFEZ LI AEM — fair value through other
£ E s comprehensive income 20(a) 5,091,664 =
— URATFEZ LI A= — fair value through profit or loss 20(b) 543,612 -
— JRPEH R AN — amortised cost 20(c) 11,546,833 =
— Al E — available-for-sale 20(d) - 7,138,662
—RBZEIH — held-to-maturity 20(€) - 10,347,834
INCESTFR Placements with the Exchange Fund 21 7,734,934 =
TS FIN ~ 2e R EA R~ Prepayments, deposits and other assets 23 829,491 67,154
Bl Fixed assets 24 53,766 34,329
1% SEFT IR EY 7= Deferred tax assets 15(b) 77,866 295
BRE A= Reinsurance assets 27 171,518 164,601
BERE Total assets 62,481,569 51,538,211
ki LIABILITIES
RATFE Interest payable 25 257,468 192,133
NI~ M2 K& Accounts payable, accrued expenses
HM a6 and other liabilities 26 5,061,679 5,363,263
MTESRITE Derivative financial instruments 18 264,386 119,064
HHEATE A 5 Current tax liabilities 15(b) 104,077 116,288
IRES 1 {5 Insurance liabilities 27 4,607,373 1,130,150
BERITRFUES Debt securities issued 28 37,292,877 34,840,706
itk Total liabilities 47,587,860 41,761,604
N EQUITY
MeFH AR S IRA K Capital and reserves attributable
&% : to the equity holders:
A& Share capital 29 7,000,000 2,000,000
REB B Retained profits 6,263,342 5,889,254
MU i Contingency reserve 1,632,818 1,679,837
NEEES Fair value reserve (2,451) 207,516
WNEEE Total equity 14,893,709 9,776,607
R R S8 Total liabilities and equity 62,481,569 51,538,211
EERETFT_E—NFHNA=+HBHAERKNT] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April
17 ° 2019.
BHRER Norman T. L. Chan =5 Raymond L. C. Li

BIFEFMITEE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

SR
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HMITEFEF L Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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RENBETNR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-)\F+=-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

A RE&ER R DY ERE ot
Share Retained  Contingency Fair value
capital profits reserve reserve Total
T b ThL ThL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E5-t5-A-B4% Balance as at 1 January 2017 2,000,000 5,023,307 1,739,389 82,320 8,845,016

RER T Profit for the year = 806,395 = = 806,395

Efth S ElES Other comprehensive income - - - 125,196 125,19

RERLERHELT Total comprehensive income for the year - 806,395 - 125,196 931,591
mEBENEACFENRES  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium eamed

A 50% 3 75% EM R A S from retained profits to contingency reserve - (200,730) 200,730 - -

ANREER B ERE T Release of contingency reserve to retained profits - 260,282 (26028) - -

F-E-t5+=B=+—-B%% Balance as at 31 December 2017 2,000,000 5,889,254 1,679,837 207,516 9,776,607

FHEENSREENES Changes on adoption of HKFRS 9

#%z (fix3.1) (Note 3.1) - 200511 - (202,799) (2,289)

F-5-)\5-A—-HAE5|44% Restated balance as at 1 January 2018 2,000,000 6,089,765 1,679,837 4,717 9,774,319

RERRA Profit for the year = 126,558 = = 126,558

Efth el Other comprehensive income - - - (7,169) (7,168)

AEEL AN Total comprenensive income for the year - 126,558 - (7,169) 11939

AR (E29) Capital injection (Note 29) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000

BRDEFIEACFENRRER  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium eared

BT 0% 5% ENEAEE  from retained profits to contingency reserve - (209.261) 209,261 - -
ANREEREERE T Release of contingency reserve to retained profits - 256,280 (256,280) - -
F-Z-\#t-A=t—H%% Balance as at 31 December 2018 7,000,000 6,263,342 1,632,818 (2,451) 14,893,709
F166 202 NFTH M ENREW FIREK N —EF The notes on pages 166 to 282 are an integral part of these
7 e consolidated financial statements.
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SENERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-)\F+=-A=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018

TR
HK$’000

2017
TR
HK$'000

ZELSZALHRE Cash flows from operating activities
ZERH Operating profit 66,944 828,732
BUTSTUEL R HZE - Adjustment for:

FEWA Interest income (1,243,385) (924,105)

FEXZ Interest expense 632,864 355,859

A EWA Dividend income 10 (58,626) (82,878)

KBINCES TR E Income from placements with

the Exchange Fund 10 (184,934)
18 Depreciation 1 19,371 14,415
B RIS IES i 4 Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 60,637 38,896
RER R Charge of impairment allowances 14 134 453
AR R R A Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 13,675 21,772
FEREIT AR R Net loss on investments at fair
%xﬁ’?bﬂ@%) value through profit or loss 10 13,500 -
ERIANTEES Change in fair value of financial
instruments (10,947) 2,661
HE R R R AT IR RO R Net gains on disposal of investments
sk 2 at amortised cost 10 (192) -
HER N ERRE Net gains on disposal of
e 280 available-for-sale investments 13 - (163,538)

HE B 7 I Gain on disposal of fixed assets - ™
BEYFIE Interest received 1,148,331 949,834
BERFE Interest paid (567,529) (381,879)
RITERER = R AT Cash flows from operating activities before

ZELVSHBIeRE changes in operating assets and liabilities (110,157) 660,221

FEIHABI=NAMNTEH Change in time deposits with original

ﬁ*”T maturity of more than three months (4,422,000) 7,520,837
RUCCFRE T Change in remittance receivables 1,113 (10,298)
WS - e REAM Change in prepayments, deposits and

RFERE) other assets (762,688) 290,684
IREERS Change in loan portfolio 1,387,357 1,704,067
RIIRI ~ RS FF 2 R E At Change in accounts payable,

MARR) accrued expenses and other liabilities (301,584) 134,870
RS S for B a AR Change in insurance liabilities, net 3,470,306 63,026
LHZEZR Exchange differences (11,553) (122,758)
ZELE(ER)/mEZIE Cash (used in)/generated from operation (749,206) 10,240,649
(Bf)/BREFHIRN Taxation (paid)/refund (29,817) 1,417
ZENLS(EH)/mEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from

e 2 operating activities (779,023) 10,242,066
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SZEUER

# consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2018

TR
HK$'000

2017
TET
HK$'000

BRREHZHASRE Cash flows from investing activities
P Purchase of fixed assets 24 (38,808) (30,217)
TOEANFEEA T AEA Purchase of investment securities
L EREMEFRR at fair value through other
comprehensive income 20(a) (1,307,246) -
MEPANFEEA T AR RS Purchase of investment securities
EHRR at fair value through profit or loss 20(b) (16,644) -
T SRR HEAH R AN 51 T Purchase of investment securities
IEHRR at amortised cost 20(c) (1,855,361) -
W3R A EEHIR R Purchase of available-for-sale
investment securities 20(d) - (3,144,426)
WEFBEEHIEHRR Purchase of held-to-maturity
investment securities 20(e) - (3,112,996)
& R B 78 R BTG 3 Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 3,465,235 6,039,777
INCESTFR Placements with the Exchange Fund 21 (7,550,000) -
& B 2 FT S SO Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets - 1
B ETIRRRE Dividend received from listed investments 58,626 82,878
BREDNER IS 50 Net cash used in investing activities (7,244,198) (164,983)
BMEFHIAL ORE) /RA Net cash (outflows)/inflows
R before financing (8,023,221) 10,077,083
MEED AL HE Cash flows from financing activities
RITEFRFTE R Proceeds from bank borrowings 27,467,772 43,250,917
BILRITRER Repayment of bank borrowings (27,467,772) (43,250,917)
FITSIEFFT RN Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 34,006,865 28,397,542
BBl 2 R TR S Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (31,289,536) (29,509,026)
T RFTS I Proceeds from capital injection 29 5,000,000 -
mEESD L/ (FR) 2% Net cash generated from/(used in)
X1 financing activities 7,717,329 (1,111,484)
HeRZERAALTME Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
OB /48 088 cash equivalents (305,892) 8,965,599
FHNLRERALTE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 15,086,190 6,102,834
CENNEREFNLSWMA Effect of exchange rates on cash and
AL cash equivalents (2,497) 17,757
FANERZERNEIE Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 14,777,801 15,086,190

F166ZE 282 A== NZAEMSIREZA —FF  The notes on pages 166 to 282 are an integral part of these consolidated
® financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ERIBIESBR AR (XAH) REWE
RENGEMEER) NEEMSIRE - B
RABE TN MANETEM SRS
EN(BEMAEBNNAITENSIREE
N~ BELIDENRiI2RE) BEAIANS
RN SEB(R B Z PR E Gm o

REEEMSMRIZALRABRGIgwS] - I
E LA R FEFIMK A B R 7~ K & B AR
(BRTESBMTE) WEMELPE -

B R ITBRIRSN Y bl LLL 4R A W 55 3] 3R AT L
A2 EER RITE A - SAEZ R
P E S JZ P S A RO BT — 2K

R A BB WS IREEN TS RE
B AXRBETRB2IHEI MEERR
MAARER 2T BRI 8 TESH
i o W RAREBHMHRE ZLHEH - R
BRMAEITNEEMSIHRKREEZREE -
EAEMDESHKEE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.
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mEMSEIRKRME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. FESIHEGR 2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. RPEEMZIREE 2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

(@ TFT=F-)N\F—A—HEEX (@ New and amended standards effective on 1 January
B A T Rz 48T 2018
o EBMBSMEENEIS e HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
[&FTA]

REFABRMNEBN S
REEMNEIS  SE
BN —_ZFE—-NF—A
—B-REFEMSK
HEEMNEIS LR K
EX - HWRUFHEE
Fle BRRUTRERELD
0 8 1 1B T HE3 W

& o

FEM SRS ENEE15
S [58PITHHR 2K
Al

ERMSHEENFES
SE_E-NF-A—
HREEN BREES
THENE18S [WA -
EREM SRS HENES
SEBXRESFE2IT
HEMEBS KL - EE
BHRO@MEIANRITE
WAREFAES - IF
SIAFSN ) B TR B K o
AERAXNHAENH#ITT
W FINN B E R
RIT2UBERFEIAN &
HEN - JFANREE
MITILEEE M o

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 with a date
of transition of 1 January 2018. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9,
comparative figures have not been restated. The
details on the impact of the change in accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 3.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 is effective from 1 January 2018 and
replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue”. HKFRS 15 is
conceptually similar to HKAS 18, but includes
more granular guidance on how to recognise and
measure revenue, and also introduces additional
disclosures requirements. The Group performed
an assessment of the new standard and
concluded that changes to current accounting
policies were not required in order to comply with
the new standard, and there is no transitional
impact to retained profits.

T == — N AR E AN The other standards effective in 2018 have no material
KRR H T EAFM © impact on the Group.
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REMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1045 1B 14 R 4 Y 3 U R (b)

ETHAENREITTF_F—N\
F-—H-HARNFERA I
HR - B ARERBIZE WS
RERBS PR © BR T N5 ATik
C EAREFEN KBTI
PaWARERZ 56 M5 HRK
FHEERNENM

New standards and amendments issued but not yet

effective

EBMSIREENE16 .
SHE] WEEEN
ik~ itE - 27 M
BROREM - ENS| AL
—WERHAASITES
EXRABATENE
BB I12N A
T BWIAR MG
RIFEATHRTNER
K o AR AMBAHINE
AFERARE REREFE
FB1z M &R =LA
Bt FEHRIAER TR
i REREREELR
BT BEEALRE LG
REHHX B R A
EBMSIREENE16
S B3l BETHRER
49 F I 55 0RO 3R 3=
N e BABM S IRE HEN
E165  RIKEFESF
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RIXNERAAHSITE
Ko HE M HAAYLE
BHEBERHAXIZLEMR
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B A Ak 75 =0 4L 220X 7R

KR o
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A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2018, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 16 “Leases” sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. A
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. HKFRS 16 will
result in almost all leases being recognised on the
statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17 "Leases”. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.



mEMSEIRKRME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$103,510,000
(Note 31). Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16,
the Group expects to recognise approximately
right-of-use assets of around HK$106 million
and the corresponding lease liabilities of HK$97
million, taking into account the effects of
discounting, on 1 January 2019. The standard is
effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group will apply
the standard when it becomes effective in 2019
without restating comparative information. The
Group will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of retained profits at
1 January 2019.

HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” establishes
a comprehensive global insurance standard
which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures
of insurance contracts. The standard requires
entities to measure insurance contract liabilities
at their current fulfilment values. The Group is
yet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations.
The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and will
be applied retrospectively with restatement of
comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

TR B H A R AE BB There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
WG EMNS RS>~ & that would be expected to have a material impact on
B o the Group.
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2.2.

ZEnkE
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2018.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities
used for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or 0ss.

In the Company's statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2.3.

2.4.
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213.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment |oss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.
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Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income in
the year in which they arise.

2.5. Financial assets

(@)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(OCI), or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model in which the investment is held.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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The Group reclassifies investment securities when
and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its financial assets:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

ERRBIFERAT —T—/\F5%K 173



REMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e NAFEZRLITAHM
2HEKHE: NKRIMED
HeRERHESRA
FMREANE S MiX
WAl RENXAR A
Ag RAME - MWRAR
FEECITAEMEE
WaItE - KAEZE
2 7538 i B A £ [ W s
FaiA - HEBIARE S
g5 FEWA KL
s oS R T iR s
Ik e HEWMA~LRIE
AR - ERTEE M S
B o 2% R B A /O 2 T IR
BT HEMNNEER
DEREREm - FEEM
Wegs sl SR HIA ©

o NARFEBAIT AR
PIE & F2 0 BH B AN 3 BA
NFEELITAREMS
[EI0 G370 32 R el -4
AR FEZMAIT AR
TE- HRAFLITE
NIARFEZAIT AR
#@ BHENTHRER
W—#n . BkaE%s
B E T HE KSR
PREMKER SRR

25 -

AR

E-E—-\&—HA—HB& =&
= [7] LA B 1 B 1A S P
A RAAFEZ LT AEAM
4 T W3S 51 K /9 4% 7= A < ;0 TR
HERESH - ARAKNRES
FHORTERNKES L 5L
e BHE4.255 B <A 1T E
TERE TSI E 2115 o

° Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains or losses.

. Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the income statement within other gains or
losses in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses (ECLS)
associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 4.2 provides more details of how the
ECLs is measured.
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2.6. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), and (i) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject to
the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.7.

2.8.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
iS negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).
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Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (i) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is
used, is amortised to income statement over the period
to maturity.
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(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCI and accumulated
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
iS no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.9. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2.10.Repossessed assets

2.1

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.12.Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group'’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (functional currency). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000) which is the
Company'’s functional and the Company’s and the
Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;,
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.13.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.

2.14.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.15.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to cash flow hedges, which are charged
or credited directly to OCI, is also credited or charged
directly to OCI and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

2.16.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
occurs.

(b)  Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.17.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.

2.18.Leases

(@) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place.
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(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies for loan
portfolio as set out in Note 4.2.

2.19.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

2.20.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.21(b).

184 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



mEMSEIRKRME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.21.fREFIHMIBREL

@)

RBREELH

ARG B IR BRI 1T X T #3238
RS - RIFFESITEE
AJK o RIRFE 2T 230X -
7R ER P2 R SR M S 0 AT S UM
FHRE  EEASITFEN
ARG o RIS BIEELE
WAE I ER O ERET o

ERFEASTFREIE(R
TG TE W Z INAI 482
SEEARILSHRE - AR
FIMFRREHERERIER
A B R A B X BRE R
B o AN S A R UK B R B2 K Ak
5% o RIS T R AR
HAjg) - LA [EVEC IR IA T A -

ARBHRFNSEHRBR - &
AR XU B Ko 12 (AR 55 P 75 1R
FAIE D

TEEMBR > BLRRER
B EERFRBRRT R
BERE - ET R DM
TH - REAEXRKEERSIRE
ESUAEINERT  BUR
THXF@  BFERAE RN
ke fr %% % 20 89 50% 3% 75%
E—BRESERN - EEN K
fit & o BTl B XU B fif & 12 B
AREBEERR - T& 2R
R RREZHRIBLERA
REEREER o

2.21.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (MIP) of the Group is accounted
for on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.

Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly people and
on lump-sum loans provided to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement, in return for an insurance
premium.
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50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside as a
Contingency Reserve for a period of time in accordance
with relevant regulatory guidelines and as considered
appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from the
Contingency Reserve can be made to meet excess
claims at any time during the period. At the end of
the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

(c) Life insurance contracts

Premiums are recognised as income when the cash is
received from the annuitant, and the policy is issued
and becomes effective after the completion of all the
underwriting procedures.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are
recognised. These liabilities are measured by using
the Modified Net Level Premium Valuation method for
long term business in accordance with the provision of
the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules. The movements in liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the income statement.

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all annuity
payments, surrenders, withdrawals and death claims
arising during the year. Surrenders, withdrawals and
death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of
future cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment
shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

2.22.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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Changes in accounting policies

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts previously recognised in the
financial statements.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9, the Group
has adopted HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group’s previous accounting policy under HKAS 39. Differences
arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been recognised directly
in retained profits, impairment allowances and other relevant
statement of financial position items as at 1 January 2018.

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018

Financial assets

until 31 December 2017, the Group classified its financial assets
in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments;
and available-for-sale investments. The classification depended
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determined the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category had two sub-categories: financial assets held
for trading, and those designated as at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset was classified
as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term or if it was part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that were managed together
and for which there was evidence of recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-making. Derivatives were also categorised
as held for trading unless they were designated as hedges.
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A financial asset was typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminated or significantly reduced a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as an accounting mismatch) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities
was managed and its performance was evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and this was the
basis on which information about the financial assets
and/or financial liabilities was provided internally to the
key management personnel; or

(i) financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modified the cash flows, could be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in
an active market and for which the Group had no intention of
trading immediately or in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments were non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management had the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
or reclassified held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an
isolated event that was beyond the Group’s control, was non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by
the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness; or (i) other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be
reclassified as available-for-sale.
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Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments were non-derivative financial
assets that were either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments were those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which might be sold in response to needs
for liquidity or changes in interest rate, exchange rate or
market prices. They were initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction costs. They
were subsequently held at fair value.

Financial assets were initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss were initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs were expensed in the income
Statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss were subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments were carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” category were included in
the income statement in the period in which they arise.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets were recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity (fair value reserve), until
the financial asset was derecognised or impaired at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in equity was reclassified to income statement. However,
interest calculated using the effective interest method was
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments were recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment was
established.
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If an asset measured at fair value had a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that was most
representative of fair value in the circumstances should be
used to measure fair value. If there was no active market for
a financial asset, the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These included the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that
were substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis
and other valuation technigues commonly used by market
participants.

The Group might choose to reclassify financial assets that would
meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the available-
for-sale categories if the Group had the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at
the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications were made at fair value as of the reclassification
date. Fair value became the new cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date were subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories were determined at
the reclassification date.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets was impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets was impaired and impairment losses
were incurred if, and only if, there was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (loss event) and
that loss event (or events) had an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about the following loss events:
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o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

o the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the Group would not
otherwise consider;

o initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

o observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

The Group first assessed whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that were
individually significant. For exposures which were not
individually significant, the Group would assess impairment
either individually or collectively. If the Group determined
that no objective evidence of impairment existed for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it included the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
them for impairment. Assets that were individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss was or
continues to be recognised were not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

192 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



mEMSEIRKRME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR S - bR SR A B
2 SRR R - A EEIER
AHIRES R - NSRRI
KEE STt RRALRE (FRE
RREHSR)  BREWATRE
S M R IRGI L - R0k
EEBT R EKE HER - 5ReH
M F USRI © B RS 23
AT FIE S - it R A
SR EN & LEENIITER
Fk -

BEE @A R - NERRE
it RkA2REZIELT
8 A REREY EHE R A RIS
Kot E AR Z B AR R B 7= AR Il &

==
//\tui"

N
B

B Z2HAERETREME  EBA
FRAEERXRFEAZ 255
AESTMZE R =B H 2 AR R
BHx  AHERMTERE-ES DS
KT EFS ANBEME B HIRS5H5E
H -

—EREHETRETHOER A=K
ARINSRE  REHEANRTHA
“HPlenE  RSEAREEINK
FHER) R 7= 2 T E 5 Mg 5 B EfL
8 - JHESHRIE R RIEIE AR
RE T AR - ARBRIARA X I E
T HIC S PR TE B9 1% B B LA IR EY
F - ANORR T E HR HIE I
A TNFEZRENEM -

Hit— AR ARASRENED
BY 25U BR 35 HA (A O 4B o AT R 40472
(ERZART SR AR MERIZE
&) HEEESE - A&
HE B 1 i R RIA S RER A
RBRIR - LR S IR fE 1T 55K 5 %
BESE ©

If there was objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments
carried at amortised cost had been incurred, the amount
of the loss was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset was reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss was
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment had a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss was the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflected the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs
for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets were grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics which were relevant to the estimation
of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that were
collectively evaluated for impairment were estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience was adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical l0ss experience
was based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that did not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of
assets should reflect and be directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period
which were indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows were
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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When a loan was uncollectable, it was written off against the
related allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the
Credit Committee. Such loans were written off after all the
necessary procedures had been completed and the amount
of the loss had been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decreased the amount of the
allowance for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreased and the decrease could be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss was reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal
was recognised in the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that an available-for-
sale investment or a group of available-for-sale investments
was impaired. For debt securities, the Group used the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost was also
evidence that the assets were impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in income
statement — was removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of the instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase could be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of such
change was reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that were either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms had
been renegotiated were treated as renegotiated loans.
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RNBEAMSIREENE S S EH The adoption of HKFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting
N DERITESHAFARSRHE policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
FRENSITBER LIS - BAM financial assets and impairment of financial assets. HKFRS 9
SIREENEISTARBEITEME also significantly amends other standards dealing with financial
KefITANIE - FIEEMN SR instruments such as HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

SEMNE7S [EMITA  HE] -

TXHEER X RANEABM S IRE LN Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption
FISHAERNZM o of HKFRS 9 on the Group.
. ERMI BN EMTE 3.1. Classification and measurement of financial
instruments
F=E-NE—HA—H EEg@mIA The total impact on the Group’s retained profits due to
HERITE M AL FIRE &A% classification and measurement of financial instruments as at
M SEET 1 January 2018 is as follows:
{pzs FHIT
Notes HK$'000
HORE BN —BE21 Opening retained profits — HKAS 39 5,889,254
JHENEE 395
BIEHFR AN HEEH Transfer from fair value reserve arising
DERBUATFELZMHITA from reclassification of investment
R Tl Bl A EE R securities from available-for-sale to FVPL
KENRE R A 3.1(a) 203,305
TISREA BiEK RN Increase in impairment allowance on
loan portfolio 3.2(a), 4.2(a) 2
EIRELR ST Increase in impairment allowance on
-NekEBRE — cash and short-term funds 3.2(b), 4.2(b) (1,041)
— IR AER AR ANE SRR — investment securities at amortised cost 3.2(c), 4.2(c)(i) (1,245)
—AAFEZAIT A M — investment securities at FVOCI
SHEABEMEFER 3.2(c), 4.2(c)ii) (506)
KAF B SR E AN Adjustment to retained profits from
295 MR B E | HE adoption of HKFRS 9 200,511

HIRBEF -FEMSIRE  Opening retained profits - HKFRS 9
EMNEIS 6,089,765
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The following table analyses the impact of transition to HKFRS
9 on the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group as at 1 January 2018. There were no changes to the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

TERAOTDEERABMSIREENS
ISHAEHAF T N\F—H—H
EVER A WS IR R AV o SRR

D EMITEF TS

BALIEN
ERMSHRE
ENES
FoB-)\E
BERE -A-H
Audited as at 31 ENNE Impairment ~ HKFRS 9 as at
December 2017 Reclassification allowances 1 January 2018
fhE TETL TATL TEL TAR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i ASSETS
eREdne Cash and short-term funds 3.20) 25,278,190 - (1041 25,277,149
RMHE RLE Interest and remittance receivables 343978 - - 343,978
{TESMIE Derivative financial instruments 333,727 - - 333,727
AR AT Loan portfolio, net 3.2 7,829,441 - 2 7,829,439
FHER Investment securities:
~UAFETHITA — fair value through other
AreEks comprehensive income 31(0) - 580,912 - 5,480,912
~UATFETHIARE  —fairvalue through profit or loss 31(a) - 1,657,750 - 1,657,750
— RIS — amortised cost 31(0),3.20) - 10,347,834 (1,245 10,346,589
~THHE — available-for-sale 3.1(a), (©) 7,138 662 (7,138,662) - -
R — held-to-maturity 31() 10,347,834 (10,347,834) - -
M0 %e Prepayments, deposits and
REMRE other assets 67,154 - - 67,154
By Fixed assets 34,329 - - 34,329
BRERIR = Deferred tax assets 295 - - 295
BRER= Reinsurance assets 164,601 - - 164,601
R BH Total assets 51,538,211 - (2288) 51,535,923
itid LIABILITIES
RfH & Interest payable 192,133 - - 192,133
AT - Accounts payable, accrued expenses
REMH and other liabilities 5363263 - - 5,363,263
frEeRIE Derivative financial instruments 119,064 - - 119,064
LERA G Current tax liabilities 116,288 - - 116,288
fRE S 5 Insurance liabiltties 1,130,150 - - 1,130,150
BATR%IER Debt securities issued 34,840,706 - - 34,840,706
gt Total liabilities 41,761,604 = = 41,761,604
Wi EQUITY
Maa AR ARA Capital and reserves attributable
RfiE% to the equity holders:
i Share capital 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
RERF Retained profits 31(),32 5,889,254 203,305 (2,794) 6,089,765
R fE& Contingency reserve 1,679,837 - - 1,679,837
AERES Fair value reserve 31(@),3.20) 207516 (203,305) 506 4117
RaR & Total equity 9,776,607 - (2,288) 9,774,319
RERRE B Total liabilities and equity 51,538,211 - (2,288) 51,535,923
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TREFIARNEBW S IREENE
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The following table shows the impact on fair value reserve
and retained profits of the Group due to the reclassification
of investment securities on the adoption of HKFRS9.

NOTERE  HOTEREEN
hEm  ¥MOATE
(REE) Tit A E RS EF
Effect on fair 2HEKE) AN
value reserve Effect on fair Effect on
(available-for- value reserve retained
sale) (Fvocl) profits*
ThT Tax Tax
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
HNRA-EEL1ENE9S  Opening balance - HKAS 39 207,516 - 5,889,254
RAMTHEESTHRAN  Reclassify investments from
NFERLIT AR R available-for-sale to FVPL 3.1(a) (203,309) - 203,305
RRILARAALEER %R Reclassify debt securities from
WATETHITAR b 2EYE  available-for-sale to FVOC] 3.1(0) 4217) 4211 -

A Total impact (207,516) 4211 203,305

MARH-EBNSREEN  Opening balance - HKFRS 9
92 - 4,211

6,092,559

REBEFE - B2 R THHE32 - # before adjustment for impairment. See note 3.2 below.

(@)

HAREEEHR DX NUADF
BRI AR

FZE—N\F—A—HB ' F&
HFRBATEZES B
R EAESHILEHZE B
1,657,750,000 7% 7T 2 M A] 4 i
ECRRTETHLENAAF
BRI AR (KE20(D)) °
BEFBMSIREEMNE9
S ZERRTFENE AR
BRARAAFEZAITA
HitemasmingE  BRhE
NEREHTNREIHEE
RAE » RIZFIUEHR T
MEFT AH AT R AR BUE
X BT VIR (EH T
A A R B AN P EZ AT
AR - BXREITA
AUk 25 203,305,0008 T E T
—E-NF—A—BMAH#HH
ERANNTFEESERER
Biaf e HEZFT—\F+=
A=+—BHLFE 5z%F%&
R KB %S 14 13,500,000
BT BIEMR B EINCHE
10) °

(@)

Reclassification from available-for-sale to FVPL

The Group's investment securities in exchange-
traded funds and real estate investment trusts were
reclassified from available-for-sale to financial assets at
FVPL amounting to HK$ 1,657,750,000 as at 1 January
2018 (Note 20(b)). They do not meet the criteria to be
classified as amortised cost and FVOCI in accordance
with HKFRS 9, because their cash flows do not
represent solely payments of principal and interest
and these investment securities cannot fulfil the pure
equity definition from the issuer’s perspective in order
to make an irrevocable election on initial recognition
at FVOCI. Related accumulated fair value gain of
HK$203,305,000 were transferred from the fair value
reserve for available-for-sale investments to retained
profits on 1 January 2018. For the year ended 31
December 2018, net loss related to these investments
amounting to HK$13,500,000 were recognised in profit
or loss (Note 10).
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HEBZEMEHR DX MH
RS

SRR D R AREEF NG
SRR DR AMEEA »
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ZESRATNENKEES
ZEATKEEBEZRAALES
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A HERSIRE N 237 B
DNPEZAITT AR b E S

RESEAMNABREESH
RANRNFETITAEME
mUW s BARAAERTE D
WBEANN & RmERHEZ
ERFRAHLLSER - 12
ERRNENINETENR
REFFE - At - AFER
5,480,912,0007%8 je &9 £ f2 3E
EFTHRSEREMNATHEES
BMATETDEEANFEE
it AE e ks r e
= (MHE20(a)) © MAITAFEE
U285 4,211,0008 T F =T — )\
F—A—BMNAHREERRA
FEMEEEFTOLEANRNFE
T A H A4 RS IR B
NFEE

3.2. EMBARIE

REFEEMSHREENFEIS A&
HB i EME 5 SRR e
TR

BRRUAA
N REHAS
MAFEEACH AR 2 EK
HIEHRA &
AR AT SR o

3.2.

Reclassification from held-to-maturity to amortised
cost

Debt investments that would have previously been
classified as held-to maturity are now classified as
amortised cost. The Group intends to hold the assets
to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows
consist solely of payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. There was no
difference between the previous carrying amount and
the revised carrying amount of these financial assets
at 1 January 2018 to be recognised in opening retained
profits.

Available-for-sale debt investments classified as
FVOCI

Debt investments were reclassified from available-
for-sale to FVOCI, as the Group’s business model is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling of these assets. The contractual cash flows of
these investments are solely principal and interest. As
a result, listed and unlisted debt investments with a
fair value of HK$5,480,912,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial assets at
FVOCI (Note 20(a)) and accumulated fair value gains
of HK$4,211,000 were reclassified from the fair value
reserve for available-for-sale investments to fair value
reserve for FVOCI investments on 1 January 2018.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets subject to

expected credit loss (ECL) model under HKFRS 9:

loan portfolio;
cash and short-term funds;
investments securities at FVOCI; and

investments securities at amortised cost.
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(@)

(b)

(©

BREASE

NFZE-—NF—F—HE
BEMNBERASE  ZEFIAA
F #1464 ¥ 1A = 10 BT 5% 5k B 4R 3R
TR /BT S b 1 1 EL 5 4943 R
BoeIdERAKRARITES -
BEBVSIREENEISHE
1F o BEKSE —BIBEALEE
LUETE X BT REE &
WE B M EE - BHURER
%2008 TE T —N\F—
B—AMRBEFFHEIA - HF
B XAME4.2() BTk BB B
& o BhE4 2@ B_FE—NF—
A—HRRBEKZSREHR
BRE R RIEXI K

NEREHEE

N REMESEARNREA
b - B RER F K E 7112
MHBNTHEERSR - MER
#1,041,0008TE F=E2—N\
F-A—HNFREBHEMNDH
A FFERAKDEA2(0) PR Y
RIETTE °

RS RA

LA AT IA RN FEEA T
AE £ EREH RSIEHE
B AR - FE R EE
ZWHTE N 121D B IR {E BT
T o R A R ARFE
AT A H 4 T eS8 7Y
BB %k & 7 5l 71,245,000 7
JC & 506,000 EF =&
—N\EFE—A—HBRRBEFF
Bk - FHERAMIEAL.2(c) Frk
RRER A °

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology in compliance with HKFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets.

The impact of the change in impairment methodology on the
Group's equity is disclosed below.

(@)

Loan portfolio

For loan portfolio already in place at 1 January 2018,
the Group has determined that reliably assessing the
probability of default at the initial recognition of each
loan or receivable would result in undue cost and effort.
As permitted by HKFRS 9, the impairment allowance
is determined in general based on loan portfolio with
similar credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
Charge of loan impairment allowances of HK$2,000
was recognised in retained profits as at 1 January 2018
for which the impairment methodology described in
Note 4.2(a) has been applied. Note 4.2(a) reconciles the
impairment allowance as at 1 January 2018 to that at
the end of the reporting period.

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds are considered to be low
risk, and thus the impairment allowance is determined
as 12-month ECLs. Charge of impairment allowances of
HK$1,041,000 was recognised in retained profits as at
1 January 2018 for which the impairment methodology
described in Note 4.2(b) has been applied.

Investments in debt securities

Investments in debt securities at amortised cost and
those at FVOCI are considered to be low risk, and
thus the impairment allowance is determined as
12-month ECLs. Charge of impairment allowances
of HK$1,245,000 and HK$506,000 for investments
at amortised cost and for investments at FVOCI
respectively were recognised in retained profits as at
1 January 2018 for which the impairment methodology
described in Note 4.2(c) has been applied.
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4,

Financial risk management

4.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (i) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage loans
originated by such Als and secured on residential properties
in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee cover to
Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to SMEs and
non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide insurance
cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated
by such Als to elderly people; (vi) to provide insurance cover
to Als in respect of lump-sum loans to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes for land premium settlement;
(vii) to operate a centralised microfinance platform to support
microfinance loans; and (viii) to offer life annuity products
in or from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group's activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees of
the Company, including the Credit Committee, Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee
(TAC) and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to
the Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition and Microfinance Scheme.
The ALCO oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis
of pricing economics and associated risks for business
transactions, whilst taking into consideration the latest
market conditions and business strategies approved by
the Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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4.2. Credit risk

The Group'’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds and
placements with the Exchange Fund. The credit risk on liquid
funds and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital
and premium receipts of the HKMCA are placed with the
Exchange Fund managed by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (HKMA). The credit risk on the placements with
the Exchange Fund is very limited as it is exposure to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(Government).

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers with established criteria, (ii) adopt prudent asset
purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk
assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group are
spread over a large number of customers and counterparties.
The underlying collaterals on the Group’'s mortgage
exposures are located in Hong Kong.
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The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which
are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
26). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis.
For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is generally
sought.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 4.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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ECL measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and credit impaired on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

o External credit rating (as far as available);

o Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o Actual or expected significant changes in the financial
conditions of the borrower;

o Significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower,;

° Significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLs is applied on loan
portfolio, cash and short-term funds and debt instruments
accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI. Financial assets
migrate through the following three stages based on the
change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECLs associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial
assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised and interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of
impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months. At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, impairment
allowance is required from all possible default events over
the expected life of the financial assets. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.
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Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or 10ss.

WHTARMEARYE - Flanfss A
REESAREFNTZAFZITR - &5/
RERTLOEE c BBV ERFE
AEKFAEHTESHRET G + BT
BT LUES - FEEHERRRIBRT
AN B HITRBIITIE S AZ I
W 15 21| HA By W BRI o ik Uz 81 A ok 3R
I - MFEREmFHIA ©

(@) WRAEE (@) Loan portfolio
REFBHEFIREETRE S The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect
A=K AR AT E & K5 their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is
MBI SR & © determined for each of those categories.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

E’\]{Eﬂﬂﬁi MDT : Group's ECL model on loans is as follows:

BIATURER SRR R R

e
Category

KA E X
Definition of category

Basis for recognition of ECL
provision

E—MER BRABANRRIK - HERBENEITEY 124 A FERE D1 5 R (2 R 7= /O 791 A

NEME ° FHOF 120 A - WS IR E M
HFHITE o)

Stage 1 Borrowers have a low risk of default and a 12-month ECLS (Where the expected
strong capacity to meet contractual cash lifetime of an asset is less than
flows. 12 months, expected losses are

measured at its expected lifetime.)

EMER IREERXRAEEN : FER/SAE TEFRIE IS M — R A EEIURE
EFB RIS I0K - MR REITXG T &L
o

Stage 2 Loans for which there is a significant increase Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired
in credit risk; as significant increase in credit
risk is presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are more than 30 days past due.

FE=MER FER/HAEEFEEAOX o TEFREI S M — 5 00RE

Stage 3 Interest and/or principal repayments are 90 Lifetime ECLs - credit impaired
days past due.

JEEH HIE B AR B e HA A 8 /AN IR 5K ° pihic o

Write-off There is no reasonable expectation of recovery Asset is written off

on the delinquent interest and/or principal
repayments.
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However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider
a loan to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any enhancements held by
the Group.

Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for
its credit risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on
a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of loan portfolio, and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loan portfolio for which impairment
allowance is recognised.

F-5-)\&+=-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2018

B-HE FHE FE=ME BH

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

THT THT THT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tk B 1E Gross carrying amount 6,435,587 1,615 5528 6,442,730
BEKE Impairment allowance (47) (151) (468) (666)
TKEE Carrying amount 6,435,540 1,464 5,060 6,442,064
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F=FE-—N\F+=ZA=+—H The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
B DU A R E R & S TR December 2018 reconciles to the opening impairment
BEREZAKAT allowance as follows:

E-he E-he E=h& BE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Tan  TAR TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z—tF+-A=t—H  Impairment allowance as

BEEASIENENS at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

HRERR 3 = 383 386
BEBAVSREENEIS  Amounts restated through opening

BB EH =58 retained profits nder HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1)

S (E3.1) 2 - - 2

F-Z-\E-A-HRE  Restated impairment allowance
EEMEHRSENE9SH  asat1lanuary 2018 under HKFRS 9

REF|HERS 9 = 383 388
B BB A Net measurement of impairment arising
BETERH from transfer of stage - 485 516 1,001
REFNKRTHMELHTE  Movement due to changes in credit risk 1 - - 4
WEARMEATR Recoveries of loans not written-off - @® (135) (143)
42 477 381 900
FHEE=NG Transfer to stage 3 - (326) 32 -
iz Write-offs - - (622) (622)
F=Z-)\5+=A=t-HA Impairment allowance as
WHERE (E19) at 31 December 2018 (Note 19) 47 151 468 666
AAERS Charge of loan impairment allowance 4 477 381 900
WE R R Recoveries and release of loans
previously written-off - - (832) (882)
AERE/ (ER) B8 Total charge/(write-back) of impairment
(M 14) allowance (Note 14) 42 477 (501) 18
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F_E—tFE+-_A=1+—HBE
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(b)  Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-term
funds as at 31 December 2018 reconciles to the
opening impairment allowance as follows:

FT=2-)\%F
+=A=+-H
As at

31 December
2018

TET
HK$'000

Impairment allowance as at
31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 =
Amounts restated through opening retained

IR &M EF S (HHE3.1) profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1) 1,041
F_=-N\F—A—HREESEVSE Restated impairment allowance as

REENFEISHAESFHEL S at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1,041
HATRERIARRER &RE) Change in the impairment allowance

(MHE14) recognised in profit or loss during

the period (Note 14) (95)

F=F-)\F+=HA=+—HW Impairment allowance as at

AERE (HHE16) 31 December 2018 (Note 16) 946

RIESHLENKRRAES - A&
H XA R T RPRITHIEE
FE ARG DI REVRTT

REREET — MR EBERE -
ZREEETEIR SN F I
EERFR AL ERER
SIRLF o FREAREEN
ZT IR AT IRE - DA RE R
ERENTHMEESHR -

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only place deposits with note-issuing banks
or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
macroeconomic data to determine the ECLS for
impairment allowance.
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All of these financial assets are considered to be low
risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at investment
grade by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was limited to
12-month ECLS.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
minimum acceptable short-term credit ratings are A-2
(Standard and Poor’s), P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).

Investment securities

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and
reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating classification as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

UAFEELITA R KA

Htr2EKEN B 0T H R

T Investment
R ET securities at B
securities at FVOCI amortised cost Total
F=B-)\E+=A=t-H THT TAL TEL
As at 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/AGa AAA/Aaa 30,105 711,904 742,009
AA— £ AA+/A33 2 Aal AA- t0 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,069,211 2,826,744 5,895,955
A—ZA+/A3EAT A-t0 A+/A3 10 A1 1,992,348 8,009,627 10,001,975
j=ki} Total 5,091,664 11,548,275 16,639,939
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Al B 5 S2Et RiiliEn

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity BA
securities securities Total
F-E—tF+-A=1+—H AT AT TAT
As at 31 December 2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/AQa AAA/Aaa 56,861 858,547 915,408
AA— £ AA+/A33 £ Aal AA- t0 AA+/Aa3 to Aat 3,468,224 3,147,190 6,615,414
A—Z2A+/A3Z AT A-t0 A+/A3t0 A1 1,955,827 6,342,097 8,297,924
BA Total 5,480,912 10,347,834 15,828,746
() IRPEHEAATIK (SERT ()  Investment securities at amortised cost
A ZEH) ISR A (previously held-to-maturity)
12 W 585 B R 5] K &9 1IF 5 Investment securities at amortised cost
SRR EmEIELT include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
RFiEH FTZF—N impairment allowance on investment securities
F+-A=+—HHK at amortised cost as at 31 December 2018
P64 AR AR 1) K B9 1IE 25 3% reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
BRELZSHIRAE as follows:
RN ¢

—E-)\F
B=+—H
As at

31 December
2018
TERT
HK$'000

q:

+

FZE—tF+=-B=1+—HRE  Impairmentallowance as at
EBLITENE 0 SHREK S 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 =
RIEFAMESIRE/EMNFE IS ETE  Amounts restated through opening retained

PRB N BT E 25 (PHE3.1) profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1) 1,245
FTE-\F—A—HAREHFBVS Restated impairment allowance as

REENEISHAEFEKS  at1January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1,245
HNFRaBIARRER 2 Change in the impairment allowance

(BE14) recognised in profit or loss during

the period (Note 14) 197

T-Z-)\&+=-A=+—HW Impairment allowance as at

WERE (FHE20(c)) 31 December 2018 (Note 20(c)) 1,442
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(i)

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at amortised cost are rated at investment grade
by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was
limited to 12-month ECLS.

Investment securities at FVOCI (previously
available-for-sale)

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance for investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2018 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

+=A=+-8
As at

31 December
2018

FExT
HK$'000

T_E—+tE+-_A=1—RBEE
EBLITENE 0 SHREK S
BEEEMS RS ENE9SETH
R B HIESH S 20 (FHE3.1)

T2 N\GE—F—HREEEMSE
REENE 9 SHAE REK R

BN TR R ER 22D
(£ 14)

Impairment allowance as at

31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 =
Amounts restated through opening retained

profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1) 506

Restated impairment allowance as

at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 506
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss during

the period (Note 14) 14

T-2-)\f+=-RA=1-H
THtARBHIANBERR

Impairment allowance recognised
in OCI as at 31 December 2018 520
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised during the period was limited to
12-month ECLs.

Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
into account of collateral held or other credit
enhancements are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their gross carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are as
follows:

F_E—+LF
+=-—A=+—H
As at

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

F#ET FH7T
HK$'000 HK$'000

N IEAR S5 Total risk-in-force
—IL BRI ZS — mortgage insurance business 23,736,830 21,100,756
—H AR R ARBS L 55 — other guarantee and insurance
business 9,644,703 6,876,730
33,381,533 27,977,486

214  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



RAEMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IHAEMERRR D W (e) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as
T @ follows:

F-B-)\F F=-B—+t#F
t=A=t-8B +=A=t—H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

TFH T FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRiaEA AR RE Neither past due nor impaired 6,307,759 7,652,233

BHBERRE Past due but not impaired 134,503 177,213

BERE Impaired 468 381

HEE B Gross loan portfolio 6,442,730 7,829,827
RORER & Allowance for loan impairment (666) (386)

6,442,064 7,829,441
F2RBARKEE IR BERN The credit quality of loans that were neither past due
IHRAEMERER - AlsE nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
AREF RN H) R BT R RS wt be assessed by reference to the internal rating system

17U - adopted by the Group.

Fo2-N\F TFoBtF
t=A=t-B +=A=1—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
THET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

KAl Grades:
123 1t03 6,296,101 7,648,227
4 4 - =
5 5 11,658 4,006

6,307,759 7,652,233
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either insignificant
credit risk or no recent past due history; and with
different levels of credit enhancements in addition to
the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history and
with different levels of credit enhancement in addition
to the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history and
with collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

—E-)N\F FTF—tF
+=-—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
F#ET FAIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B E Past due:

=PMNATAT Three months or less 133,090 176,723

NDHAZAT Six months or less but
BEI=1H over three months 1,209 77
NNABE Over six months 204 413
SEN Total 134,503 177,213
HEhfAmnAFEE Of which fair value of collateral 2,644,395 2,409,667
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4.3. HiHNBE
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TR SR XS o Tig RS T5E
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(@ Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group before taking
into account the cash flows from collateral held
amounted to HK$468,000 (2017: HK$381,000).

The fair value of related collateral held for individually
impaired loans of the Group was nil (2017: nil).

(h)  Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. Repossessed properties are
sold as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to
reduce the outstanding indebtedness and are classified
in the statement of financial position within “Other
assets”. If excess funds arise after repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness, they are distributed to the
beneficiaries of the assets under the applicable laws.

4.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group's exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued by the use
of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.
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The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results of
the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income under
different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative
impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel
downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31 December
2018 would decrease the future net interest income for the
next twelve months by around HK$1 million (2017: HK$2
million increase) and increase by around HK$1 million (2017:
HK$2 million decrease) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been lower by around HK$1 million
(2017: HK$0.2 million higher) and the fair value reserve would
have been higher by around HK$4 million (2017: HK$3 million)
as at 31 December 2018. If interest rates had experienced
a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year
would have been higher by HK$1 million (2017: HK$0.3 million
lower) and the fair value reserve would have been lower by
around HK$4 million (2017: HK$3 million).

As at 31 December 2018, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$20 million higher (2017:
HK$17 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$20
million lower (2017: HK$17 million).
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As at 31 December 2018, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$1
million higher (2017: HK$2 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$1 million lower (2017: HK$2
million).

As at 31 December 2018, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, profit for
the year would have been around HK$5 million lower.
Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had increased by 1%, profit for the
year would have been around HK$5 million higher.

As at 31 December 2017, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, the fair
value reserve would have been around HK$17 million lower.
Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had increased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$17 million higher.

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may
be undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding
side, the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

Hftspm
B %7 Otherforeign B#
HKD Usb currencies Total
TEL TAn TERL TAn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T=F-)\E+=A=1+-8 Asat31December 2018
R Assets
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 28,807,046 510,753 73,056 29,390,855
NGNS Interest and remittance receivables 281,881 11,117 44,921 437,919
iTEeETA Derivative financial instruments 140,193 4,348 16,506 161,047
RFAL 49 Loan portfolio, net 6,442,064 - - 6,442,064
AR : Investment securities:
—AAFERAITA —Rvocl
EthdERE 1,253,359 3,838,305 - 5,091,664
—AATFEREIT AR —FvPL 534,843 8,769 - 543,612
— TR Tk — amortised cost 2,808,433 8,738,400 - 11,546,833
INLERTR Placements with the Exchange Fund 7,734,934 - - 7,734,934
ANHR - Ze Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Ll other assets 689,045 140,351 95 829,491
BT R Fixed assets 53,766 - - 53,766
BRI Deferred tax assets 77,366 - - 77,866
BRER> Reinsurance assets 171,518 - - 171,518
RERE Total assets 48,994,948 13,352,043 134,578 62,481,569
il Liabilities
RIS Interest payable 217,962 10,744 28,762 257,468
R TR Accounts payable, accrued
s expenses and other liabilities 4,918,523 143,156 - 5,061,679
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 78,739 2,791 182,856 264,386
LHHIN G Current tax liabilities 104,077 - - 104,077
R ffR Insurance liabilities 4,607,373 - - 4,607,373
BRIRSILH Debt securities issued 28,199,186 5,996,683* 3,097,008** 37,292,871
SREE Total liabilities 38,125,860 6,153,374 3,308,626 47,587,860
RO Net position 10,869,088 7,198,669 (3,174,048) 14,893,709
AERERINES D Off-balance sheet net notional
position : (11,770,471) 8,532,367 2,982,048 (256,056)

* [RFRERIN SR L]
EOMITESBTA(EER
VARIRA SR A T 5 MR s MR
b ) BB X E S E R FER
ZE -

* LR RET
*x BEBIE15Z78 TTHRITR

%
R RAMZE T ARM S
% FEHXIRABTT

# "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
o Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of

HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$1.5 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.
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Hfwghm
BT e Other foreign ek
HKD usb currencies Total
TAL TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-Z—tF+-A=t—B Asat31December 2017
R Assets
NeRkEdRe Cash and short-term funds 23,703,585 1,371,906 202,699 25,278,190
RS RLH Interest and remittance receivables 215,386 85,954 42638 343,978
fTEEBIA Derivative financial instruments 182,820 1617 146,290 333,727
RHAS A Loan portfolio, net 7,829,441 - - 7,829,441
IR : Investment securities:
—AfitE — available-for-sale 2,859,419 4,279,243 - 7,138,662
—HEEHE — held-to-maturity 2487871 7,775,932 84,031 10,347,334
AR e REMAS  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 37,000 30,054 100 67,154
Bl 77 Fixed assets 34,329 - - 34,329
BREHIA Deferred tax assets 295 - - 295
BRERE Reinsurance assets 164,601 - - 164,601
RiEBH Total assets 37,514,747 13,547,706 475,758 51,538,211
il Liabilities
RfTFIE Interest payable 162,124 3592 %417 192,133
RHA - HAEFZR Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Etfi b and other liabilities 5,098,389 264,367 - 5,363,263
TEEBIA Derivative financial instruments 68,163 - 50,901 119,064
EL i Current tax liabilities 116,288 - - 116,288
R f R Insurance liabilities 1,130,150 - - 1,130,150
BRITGESILA Debt securities issued 27,424,606 2,048,751 5,367,349* 34,810,706
HREH Total liabilities 34,000,227 2.316,710 5,444,667 41,761,604
FOAE Net position 3,514,520 1123099 (4,968,909) 9.776,607
RERERINES 0 Off-balance sheet net notional position * (7,302,494) 2,046,666 5,281,689 25,861

* [RFEAERN SR LT
BIMITEERMTA(ZER
VAR AR S8 F] T 55 R B9 X
f) BB X E TS E R FER
Z5 -

* LHXIPRET °

o HEERE26{Z BT RERS
UES ~ 172 TTHPRITRSIE
FRI0IZB T ARM RS IE
7 HEHIRNET

*%

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

HK$2.6 billion, Australian dollars of HK$1.7 billion and renminbi
of HK$1 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may be
undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—MARE  ZAANE —EHLE
E=/A E-F 3t
AR Over Over Over RENE Fits
Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over  Non-interest ot
1month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
Tn Tén Thn Tén Thn Tén Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F-)\£+ZB=1-B Asat31December 2018
B Assets
NERERRE Cash and short-term funds 9,187,118 18714302 1,279,899 - - 209536 29,390,855
ke R Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 437,919 437,919
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 161,047 161,047
RABR AT Loan portfolio, net 6,400,321 22,248 7,012 10934 1,549 - 6,442,064
THRE : Investment sectrities:
—IATEZHITA —Rvocl
bl e 851,591 3,239,436 497,458 503,179 - - 5,091,664
—WATEZHITARE  —FWRL - - - - - 543,612 543,612
— RIS — amortised cost - 1309923 1335738 4317726 4,583,446 - 11,546,833
INCESHR Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 773493 7734934
TEFT - ReREM Prepayments, deposits
R and other assets 137,483 - - - - 692,008 829,491
BEAE Fiked assets - - - - - 53,766 53,766
BRHA Deferred tax assets - - - - - 77,866 77,866
BRERF ReinsLrance assets - - - - - 171,518 171,518
AR Total assets 16,576,513 23285909 3120107 4,831,839 4584995 10,082,206 62,481,569
ik Liabilities
RfFIE Interest payable - - - - - 257,468 257,468
RFIA ~ RIRTF Accounts payable, accrued
REMAR expenses and other liabilities 4,902,866 - - - - 158,813 5,061,679
fESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 264,386 264,386
el Current tax liabities - - - - - 040m 104,077
REAR Insurance liabiliies - - - - - 4607373 4,607,373
ExfTfi&is Debt securiies isstied 5631318 11495125 8,082,087 8468836 3,615,511 - 31292877
REER Total liabilities 10,534,184 11495125 8,082,087 8468836 3615511 5392117 47,587,860
e gRERD 25 Total interest sensitivity gap* 6,042,329 11,790,784  (4,961,980)  (3,636,997) 969,484
EGEAR: Interest rate derivatives
(Boamnaien) (notional amounts of net position) (567,144)  (6,033,612) 3810990 1293541 1,240,169
* RITASTESRITANE £1T * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on

RSIEHEE SRR ©

the debt securities issued.

EBRBISERLAT —S—\EFHK 223



REMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—MANE ML —ENE
E=1F if
Ml Over Over Over BN M8

Upto  1monthto 3months 1yearto Over  Non-interest

1 month 3months t0 1year 5years 5years bearing
T ThT T AT ThL T Thr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FZF-tE+ZA=1—H Asat31December 2017

(N Assets
NeREEre Cash and short-term funds 10914798 10289000 396,000 - - 106392 25278190
TN Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 33978 313978
EEBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 33,727 33727
iyl Loan portfolio, net 1,777,957 26,167 10,666 14,835 216 = 7829441
EERA Investment securities:

— A E — avalable-for-sale 113778 304488 715015 583,229 - TR0 7138662

R — held-o-maturity 107253 100853 018 4802050 3955975 - 03784
ARFI - e Rt Prepayments, deposits and

R other assets 29315 - - - - 37,839 67,154
BER” Fived assets - - - - - 31,39 3,329
BREHAF Deferred tax assets - - - - - 295 2
BRIAF ReinsLrance assets - - - - - 164,601 164,601
AL Total assets 19,976,107 14,368 539 5,157,699 5,400,114 3,956,191 2618911 51,538,211
ik Liabiliies
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 192133 192133
RIFSA  RIRTFS Accounts payable, accrued

RE expenses and other liabiities 5,208,780 - - - - 154483 5363263
fESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 119,064 119,064
e Current tax iabilties - - - - - 116,288 116,288
RS Insurance liabiities - - - - - 0150 1130150
BRfIfREIER DeDt securities issued 9410453 9,501,755 4,750,551 7,564,434 3613513 = 34,840,706
REER Totalliabilities 14,619,233 9,501,755 4,750,551 7,564,434 3613513 1712118 11,761,604
HegEEgnia Totalinterest sensitivty gap* SITAL 486683 W98 QL3N 32678
FIEfTETA Interest rate derivatives

(Boamnaien) (notional amounts of net position) (345007)  (2155968) 360,132 790986 1375718

* RITASTESRITANE 17 & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
REIUEHF FE LA ° the debt securities issued.
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4.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources of
liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.

EBRBISERAT —S—\FEFHK 225



REMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(i ESTETEIESKH ()  Non-derivative cash outflows

-MARE  =ZAANE —EHE
2R B-f Eit-
AR Over Over Over AENE

Upto1 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over ek
month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
T TR TR TR TR TiEn

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-8-)\E+=A=t-H Asat31December 2018
il Liabilities
BRI Debt securities issued (2,179,266)  (6,272,341) (11,778,059) (14,558,938)  (4,517,697) (39,306,301)

—EpE

Sl
—N AW Over RERE
Upto  Tmonthto 3months 1year to QOver
1 month 3months to 1 year 5years 5years
AL TAT T AL TAT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-F—tE+-A=+—H Asat31December 2017
fifi Liabilities
BRTIES T Debt securities issued (4926521 (215563)  (12005967)  (13525066) (4532060  (37,145240)
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iy PTEIEAZRA/OR

)

F-%-)\EtZB=1-H Asat31December 2018

(if)

AR

Upto1
month
TiEn

HK$'000

Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

—MAME
B=/\B
Over

1 month to
3 months
TiEn
HK$'000

ZPRRE
B-E
Over

3 months
to 1 year
TiEn
HK$'000

-t
Eit:3
Over

1 year to
5 years
THT
HK$'000

RENE
Over

5 years
FHT
HK$'000

Total
TiEn
HK$'000

ETFIEEEES Derivative financial
fEeRIA: instrument settled:
— AREE — on net basis (6,129) 17,655 29 14,587 (29,246) (3,104)
— BoEE — 0N gross basls
RHES Total outflow (785,440)  (1,808,855)  (6,528,845)  (1,512,233)  (1,503,110) (12,138,483)
AR Total inflow 782,570 1,801,737 6,574,167 1,571,487 1,328,637 12,058,598
(8,999) 10,537 45,351 73,841 (203,719) (82,989)

FTZZ-tETZA=1—H Asat31December 2017

—M AR

Upto
1 month
Thr
HK$'000

=0
QOver

1 month to
3months
AL
HK$'000

3months
to1year
AL
HK$'000

—FHE

Over
1yearto
5 years
b
HK$'000

REHNE
Over
5years
AL
HK§'000

ETIEELER Derivative financial
TESRTA instrument settlec:
— AR — onnetbasis 985 (11,490) 31,536 (13,181) (30,558) (22,708)
—BHEE — 0N gross basis
et Total outflow (172,.843) (1,304,591) (3,649,074) (993 568) (1,540,185) (7,660,261)
RARH Total inflow 172,508 1,323,759 3,790,465 1,102,945 1,532,460 1922137
650 1618 172927 96,196 (38.283) 239,168
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(b) EIHBDH (b) Maturity analysis
TEREREEZRARESGLHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
AFREE - DM BRER~R relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
AR EIEAR] - period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

-MNEE =ARY —-E)E
=R it 3
Il MR Over Over  EEHE

Repayable Upto 1monthto3 3monthsto  1yearto Over RS ot |
on demand 1 month months 1year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
Tn Tn Tén Tin Tin Tin Tn TEn
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fo2-)\EtZA=t-A As at 31 December 2018

# Assets
e keSS (E5) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 196,590 9,200211 18,715,000 1,280,000 - - - 29,391,801
RRAE Loan portfolio 2,195 44,596 123,539 460,888 2,109,440 3,694,490 7,582 6,442,730
IBRE Investment securiies
—WATETHTALEENE  —ROCI = 21,780 191,143 1,627,876 3,244,865 - - 5,091,664
—WATBTH ARG —FVPL - - - - - - 543,612 543,612
— RS (25) —amortised cost (gross) - - 300000  1,335810 5328313 4,584,152 - 11,548,275
INCESER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 173493 - 1734934
BRBAT Reinsurance assets - - - - - - M8 171,518
198,785 9,272,587 19,329,682 4,704,574 10,682,618 16,013,576 722,712 60,924,534
Ak Liabilities
REAR Insrance liabilities - 20,357 40,386 176,995 824770 2,222,021 1,322,844 4,607,373
BRAIRSIER Debt securiies issued - 259218 6,110,063 11307930 13,667,187 3615511 - 31,92871

- 2612543 6150449 11484925 14491957 5837532 1,322,844 41,900,250

AL —ENE
2= £ gk
HeEE AR Over Over  AFHE

Repayable Upto Tmonthto3 3 months to 1yearto QOver TR
on demand 1 month months 1 year 5years 5years Undated

TR TR o ThT TAL ThT AL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FZ-tFTZA=t-H  Asat31December 2017

7= Assets
NEREHRS Cash and short-term funds 93799 10927391 10289000 3,968,000 - - - 2528190
RRA4 Loan portfolio 3426 61,580 132817 543,114 2,466,304 4621873 13 7,829,827
A Investment securities
—WfitE — avallable-for-sale - 551,833 291,063 819816 3,818,200 - 1657750 7,138,662
—HBREE — held-to-maturity - 117,253 - 464,018 5810588 3955975 - 10,347,334
BRIAF Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 164,601 164,601
97,025 11,658,057 10,712,880 5794948 12,095,092 8,577,848 1823064 50,759,114
fifit Liabilties
REAR Insurance liabilties - - - - - - 1130150 1,130,150
BRAGSS Debt securities issued - 487189 2060057 11647747 12647560 3613513 - 34,840,706

- 48829 2000057 1647747 12647560 3613513 1,130,150 35,970,856
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4.5. REERBE
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Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

4.5. Insurance risk

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group provides
the mortgage insurance cover to the Als for first credit losses
of up to 40% of the property value of a residential mortgage
loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at
origination, or other thresholds as specified from time to
time. The Group also provides financial guarantee cover to
Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMES
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong, insurance cover to
Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by such
Als and secured on residential properties and, if applicable,
other assets, and in respect of lump-sum loans advanced
by such Als to owners of properties of subsidised housing
schemes primarily for land premium settlement and secured
on these properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means longer
payout period and larger loan balance will be over time. This
will affect the frequency and severity of claims as there is a
risk of the property value insufficient to cover the outstanding
loan balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-
share reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers
in an effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage
insurance business. The Group conducts comprehensive
assessment including the financial strength and credit ratings
of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the approved
selection framework. The approved mortgage reinsurers
are subject to periodic reviews. For financial guarantee
cover provided to Als via its general insurance subsidiary,
the Group relies on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment
on the borrowers to mitigate default risk and any loss in
the loan facility will be shared proportionately between the
Group and the lender on a pari passu basis to minimise moral
hazards. The mortality assumptions of reverse mortgages are
also reviewed on a regular basis, to assess the risk of larger
deviation between the actual and expected operating results.

Through its life insurance subsidiary, the Group offers annuity
product to personal customers. Insurance risk arises from
an inaccurate assessment of the risks entailed in writing and
pricing an insurance policy. The major insurance risk is the
longevity risk which arises from the possibility that actual
life expectancy of annuitants being longer than expected.
Insurance risk is managed by adopting a prudent set of
assumptions and conducting regular experience studies.
Asset-liability mismatch risk inherent to the annuity product
is due to asset volatility, uncertain annuity liabilities, cash
flow mismatch and currency mismatch between assets and
liabilities. To mitigate such risk, the Group actively monitor
the performance and steadfastly maintains control over asset
allocation.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.
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The general insurance subsidiary and life insurance
subsidiary are subject to the supervision of the Insurance
Authority and are required to observe the relevant
compliance requirements stipulated by the Insurance
Authority.

As at 31 December 2018, if the combined ratio of general
insurance business had increased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2017: HK$3 million) lower. If
the combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2017: HK$3 million) higher.

The following table shows the sensitivity of insurance
liabilities on the life insurance business to potential changes
in mortality and valuation interest rate as at 31 December
2018 (2017: nil).

R BE TR RE& T
SEEZ B2 tbEZ)
Amount Percentage
change from change from

insurance insurance

liabilities liabilities

F#ET %

HK$'000 %

i/ O) i/ Ofd)

F-=-)N\F+=-A=+-—H Increase/ Increase/

As at 31 December 2018 (decrease) (decrease)

A= Mortality

+ 10% + 10% (45,692) (1.4)

- 10% - 10% 51,432 1.6
fH{ER = Valuation interest rate

+0.5% + 0.5% (132,321) (4.0)

- 0.5% - 0.5% 143,042 4.4
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4.6, EMATRABRHLFEE 4.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ 2AFEMIT (@) Fair value estimation
TRINTIRAFEGREGEES The following table shows financial instruments
EHRE) ISR IA - AF recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
BERMEFIE LT : different levels of fair value hierarchy have been

defined as follows:

o TEBRMmAFERERR e Quoted prices in active markets for identical
Fo Az RN (E— assets or liabilities (Level 1);

B):

o RE—EMBRE RN o Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
SN R AGRER 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
() skia sz (M either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
MARHERT) AR 2 i3 from prices) (Level 2); and
(B=R) &

. BRAFHARIFEE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
FRINR z Tz EsE (+ on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
AMBEZHE)(E= (Level 3).

B) -

F-2-)\f+=B=1-H F=F-t&+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017

F-F =R £ZR ot R £_R 55

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TEn Thn TEn Thn TAL FAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

&7 Assets
fTESBIE Derivative financial instruments - 161,047 - 161,047 - 333,727 333,727
AR R Investment securities
— ATFEREITA —Fvocl
Afremle 5,091,664 - - 5,091,664 - - -
—UATERHITARE  —FVPL 543,612 - - 543,612 - - -
IHHETS Available-for-sale securities
—RBiI5 — DeDt securities - - - - 5480912 - 5480912
— Bt — Other securities - - - - 1657750 - 1657,750
INLEETR Placements with the Exchange
Fund - - 7734934 7,734,934 - - -
5,635,276 161,047 7,734,934 13,531,257 7,138,662 333,727 7,472,389
il Liabilities
ITESBTA Derivative financial instruments - 264,386 - 264,386 - 119,064 119,064

FANRK AR SR AT Debt securities issued designated
BEAITAREHEAT  asatfair value through proft
R%itH orloss upon initial recognition - 143981 - 143981 - 141946 141946

= 408,367 = 408,367 = 261,010 261,010
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technique not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2017.

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.
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Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3. The placements with the
Exchange Fund are included in Level 3 with its fair
value determined by reference to the estimated
rates of investment return for future years.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as
follows:

2017

TAET
HK$'000

F—H—H As at 1 January - -
INCEESTFR Placements with the Exchange Fund 7,550,000 -
TR HIAD Income from placements with
INCES TR the Exchange Fund recognised
in profit or loss 184,934 -
F+=B=+—H” As at 31 December 7,734,934 -

HEAAREITEBHERA ™
MR

F_E-—NF+=-A=1+—
AR=F—tF+=—A=+—
H - AEHHRTWSHKAE
BRATFERHE/NSHITAN
KHEESQAFEHESBEEAT
B - BREKAESAFEES
MEemI AN TRAFENR
AFEUHENSHT A 2K
HE - A FERAFEEMR
Bl

(b)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:
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SRR Financial assets
AR Investment securities
— RS — amortised cost
—RAZEH — held-to-maturity
SRARK Financial liabilities
BRAIGSIES DeDt securities issued

MitERIT AR FENDER
THTTERBERILR :

iy AeREHAES

NekEHFEBRER
Tk F T HRBIE
RERIIK FREFER
B A FEB A IKE (E
ERER(ExasE,
TANA) It R FE
TETERRXERR
PSS MIAITHRM T
MERKRERITELZ
FRAERE - Bt
FTHRORFENETE
IKEE -

(il TIREE B

RRABE THRBER
BEFIIK o /NEB o BT AR
AERBEEMERITE -
E it - BTRA S B IR E
BERNFHENSEMAIT

K

carrying
amount

T
HK$'000

11,546,833

37,148,896 36,588,554 =

FI3-\E+ZR=1-A
As at 31 December 2018
AYE

Fair

value
TAT
HK$'000

F-5t5+-A=1-H

As at 31 December 2017
TKEE
Carrying
amount
TAL
HK$'000

A

H_R
Level2
AL
HK$'000

-
Level 1
T
HK$'000

#-R
Level 2
TAT
HK$'000

% 7E
Level 1
FhL

HK$'000 HK$'000

11,530,161

11,530,161 = = = = =
10,347,834 10,961,660 10,263,983 291617

36,588,554 34698760 34830933 - 34830933
The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:

()  Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
and are stated net of impairment allowance.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

(i)  Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a reasonable
estimate of the fair value.
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(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(Vii)

Investment securities at amortised cost
(previously held-to-maturity)

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price guotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund is determined with reference
to the estimated rates of investment return for
future years, approximating its carrying values.

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from debt
securities executed for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.
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Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

(viii)

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

4.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for the
Company and its insurance subsidiaries respectively;

To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

To support the Group’s stability and growth;
To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adequacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.
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The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the year,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set out
in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, which is made by
reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules (BCR), the calculation
basis of capital ratio under the BCR follows the basis of
consolidation for financial reporting with the exclusion of
subsidiaries which are “regulated financial entities” (e.g.
insurance companies). It is because these entities are
supervised by a regulator and are subject to the maintenance
of adequate capital (e.g. solvency ratio) to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for banks under the
BCR. The investment cost of these unconsolidated regulated
financial entities is deducted from the capital base whilst the
corresponding related exposures are also excluded from the
calculation of risk-weighted assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2018 2017

F#&T FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

A&7 Share capital 7,000,000 2,000,000

= Reserves 8,150,766 7,662,473

BER R Impairment allowance 3,290 386

HBR - Deductions:

—TFREEWELEN — Investment in regulated

&% (8,000,000) -

— EAhIIBR AL — Other deductions (2,971) (183,796)

RARERY B AR Total capital base 7,151,085 9,479,063

BARFE R Capital Adequacy Ratio 26.8% 21.0%
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4.8. EETITR SR G2 IH

TEREBESREAREANZAMSR
MERFPARENEHN SR A~ M7
TR - BIXFR MR R S
FHZHIRFEUSRTANHESE
HUFTEIR © HEEH BN A4 E
BT R KRR E TR EY
apilikae A

4.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position but
are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
and net amounts, as well as provide additional information on
how such credit risk is mitigated.

F-%-)\EtZA=1-R FoZ-tF+ZA=1-A
As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017
RABARESENSRAR
BAIS L 128
RRRH Related amount Related amount
i not set off = not set off
Carrying  in the consolidated Carrying in the consolidated
amounts statement amounts statement
onthe of financial position* onthe  offinancial position”
consolidated  fi4SMIR consolidated T8
statementof  Derivative  F&HHR B satementof  Dervatve  M4HAR e
financial financial Cash Net financial financial Cash Net
position instruments  collateral amount* position  instruments collateral amount*
TR Tén TEn Tén BT ThL ThL ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
SHAF Financial assets
EfmiEeR Positive fair values for
TEATE derivative financial
instruments 161,047 (98,859) (58,154) 4,034 333727 (79,634) (207,09) 47,064
SRR Financial liabilities
SR Negative fair values for
TANTE derivative financial
instruments 264,386 (98,859) (137,483) 28,044 119,064 (79.634) (29.315) 10,115
& [HEXBEHRELE WS KRR * Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated

MEH | IR FTEERERBLI M
WEREERX AT RA SRR
R/ B2 o

statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
similar agreements including CSA.

* BRI R U E T H SR 1 T *
LRI B A/ AR EHEARE
HAR 5 Fims) - HIREHREDN
SRAST/ R SAKREENE

Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group’s
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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KB IHE T RRIR
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T2 it RRi&k - AEHS

RESEZREEMAR (BRETEXER

THRREDUEHHN A ETS) -

e

FRYE(AT R HIbf o

5.1

5.2

ERAESHRERE

REFSRIWERFAS - LESWT
HMHERSR - EEERHERS
e - REEX B IaIAEE TR
%A A TR E AL IR HMT - 3
BRgRRMAT - NREHFBAABRLE
F - ST RE SRR TN 8948
RAFHEL AR o it REAERE
FRE RO TERBRIZS EMRLT -
PR/ ME T S R SRR S IRE R E

S o

BREAET—FE—N\F+_A=1+—
A H K EEEHNDE 19 NI E -

— AR GRE2 Mk 55 Y R BE R 48 (R 4H
BHRRBARKE

RERR R RIBRAS - AT
HRRBPRKE  BREAFREHE
BY B 22 Kook B AR B AR B RO SO
HE - HEFEERFREEIHR
BANRAX - ERERRBRRERS
B - AERERR MRS Y TET
HIUEP BB Hb R Rk 8
BETNRTNANRKTEER - &5
SRR T - HEZKEHR
WA TE R RIR2AEE IR o

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

5.1.

5.2,

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. It is required to
exercise judgements in making assumptions and estimates
to incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecast of economic conditions.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December 2018
is disclosed in Note 19.

Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios of general insurance business

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to the
loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and the local
property market in making estimation of the payments which
the Group is required to make in fulfilling its obligations under
the insurance and guarantee contracts. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating the ultimate claim
amount are reviewed regularly.
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REAGT=_E—/\F+_A=+—
H &K EE M E 27 A -

5.3. AFREWSHRESHHT

REEEARIDETLFRIZ - HE
R =R RIE EHRmE o TR
FERZFRETE - KF - FAK
PFrIE - FHERHEITR

REAGRT_E—N\F+_A=1+—
B A K EEEMDE 27 NI EE -

DREE

AEATEZERENEMURA = RHRE
ERRS - —RRRERAFRRILS - Eit
AL 55 - 514059 R AR B B LA TS A SR DY R M
RITEOFIS TE - REGIRIE 5 B ER
PIERNBRESHITHRE - WA NE
BASHFELS - T-F—EF K&
FERN —NEEME - BET ARBHEXILS
1B B — 53 28R AL T2 67 R 50 B A0 4 2400
e lEET —F-N\FxltlLEARTT
RESWS  BRFIUT=AEEDE -

—RRREIEBERBRR  TERBR
PNEBRABRRLS -  ASRREBEFE
W55 - IRR = RAERE IR RS BIEITR
Wb 5 e 5255 R AT HAt Al 35

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2018 is disclosed in Note 27.

5.3. Insurance contract liabilities of life insurance
business

The liability for insurance contracts is based on current
assumptions with a margin for risk and adverse deviation.
The main assumptions used relate to mortality, longevity,
expenses and discount rates, which are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2018 is disclosed in Note 27.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage
purchase and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from
mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage business.
In 2017, the Group was organised in such a way that resource
allocation and performance measurement were based on the
Group as a whole in a single segment for mortgage related
businesses. With the completion of corporate restructuring and the
launch of annuity business in 2018, the following three operating
segments are identified.

General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.
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TRINANEAHE =
= r—BlE4EE
HAhRE o

ZE DB
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The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
information for operating segments of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

MXE=R
HREER
%
Asset 2B EN R 4
purchase —RRE AERE Inter-
and General Life  segment Bit
servicing  insurance  insurance elimination Total
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ=-F-)\&+=H  Yearended 31 December 2018
=+—-HIEEE
BFIBIA Net interest income 438,904 95,264 2,041 - 536,209
R b 25l 57 Net insurance business results - 243,509  (549,885) - (306,376)
HiA Other income 162,269 34 184,952 (97,622) 249,633
ZEWA Operating income 601,173 338,807 (362,892) (97,622) 479,466
ZETH Operating expenses (240,840)  (166,087)  (103,083) 97,622 (412,388)
FPBRERNZLERF  Operating profit before impairment 360,333 172,720  (465,975) - 67,078
RERE /(&) Write back/(charge) of impairment
allowances 153 (280) (7) - (134)
BR A& A Profit before taxation 360,486 172,440  (465,982) - 66,944
I Taxation 59,614
AEERT Profit for the year 126,558
F-5-)\& As at 31 December 2018
t=A=+-H
DR Segment assets 49,699,136 5,008,698 8,008,883  (235,148) 62,481,569
HE b Segment liabilties 42,550,765 1,863,272 3,408,971  (235,148) 47,587,860
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7. FE2UIAN 7. Interestincome

A E Loan portfolio 162,583 165,467
Ne FEBRe Cash and short-term funds 557,744 320,395
AR Investment securities 509,383 416,471
1,229,710 902,333

8. FE2XZH 8. Interest expense

RITERKE ZITHRBIUES Bank loans and debt securities issued 607,367 349,328
HAtb Others 86,134 45,427
693,501 394,755
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9. (RBEMLZAYU ZE Mk 9. Revenue account for insurance business

2018

— R AERE
General Life Bit

insurance insurance Total
TET TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ER% (M5 () RHHE27()()  Gross premiums written

(Note (a) and Note 27(a)(i) 634,757 2,780,240 3,414,997
BRERE (FHE276)0) Reinsurance premiums (Note 27(a)(i) (69,018) - (69,018)
R 508 H (i 27()(0)) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)(i)) 565,739 2,780,240 3,345,979
RABRENZ IS Movement in unearned premiums, net (188,327) - (188,327)
RER S 240 (B2 27(a)()  Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)(i)) 377,412 2,780,240 3,157,652
BERTESN  BENFER Net claims incurred, benefits paid
REFEANRE D and movement in policyholders’
(FfE 27(a)(i) B BE 27(0)i)) liabilities (Note 27(a)(ii) and
Note 27(b)(i)) (3,392) (3,317,645) (3,321,037)
KREERHRE 2N Net premiums earned after provisions 374,020 (537,405) (163,385)
AeXit Commission expenses (154,121) (12,268) (166,389)
EFFT Levy expenses - (212) (212)
BREARFANEE S H Reinsurers' share of commission
expenses 23,610 - 23,610
AETHAMREFES T Net commission and levy expenses (130,511) (12,480) (142,991)
MkEeRIERT LA Net premiums earned after
B REIRZE 24 commission and levy expenses 243,509 (549,885) (306,376)
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2017

—RREE

2017

General

insurance

T

HK$'000

FRFE (HE (@) &FE27(@)(30) Gross premiums written (Note (a) and Note 27(a)(i)) 493,459

BIREREE (HHE27) () Reinsurance premiums (Note 27(a)(i)) (76,383)

RS 28250 (HhHE27(@) (i) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)(i)) 417,076

RFHAR SR AR B 28N Movement in unearned premiums, net (64,662)

BEHERRZR 250 (ME 27@) () Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)(i) 352,414

FRZR7= A 280 (ME 27() (i) Net claims incurred (Note 27(a)(ii) 641)

Ik BZEEHEREE 2 Net premiums earned after provisions 351,773

BeH Commission expenses (166,252)

BREAFREBENFESSZH Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 25,798

B a5 Net commission expenses (140,454)

R A A BERS 2 Net premiums earned after commission 211,319
B - Note:

@ HRRRLSME ERFEEIEZRERS
RZEZRBURRRAS - DO RENF
Bhps B it Xl = ik = 2B FAMEN e —
Z P TTREIRIBRE ©

@)

For general insurance business, gross premiums were mainly derived from
mortgage insurance cover on mortgage loans and on reverse mortgage loans
with a small portion from mortgage insurance cover on lump-sum loans to
owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land premium
settlement.
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10. HUA 10. Other income
2017
FABTT
HK$'000
REINCES TR Income from placements with the
Wz Exchange Fund 184,934 -
IR IER T A RIS HATI R Early prepayment fees and late charges 384 466
SLHZEN Exchange difference 12,335 171,147
ST ARNFEED Net change in fair value of
AN financial instruments 11,840 (1,057)
AR BRI ARz 8 Net loss on investments at fair value
TR RN through profit or loss (13,500) -
LETIRRBREKA Dividend income from listed investments 58,626 82,878
HH S 4% P AR A AN 71 K B9 4% % Net gains on disposal of investments
Wiz 3an at amortised cost 192 =
& SRR R RES Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
AR (HHE13) investments (Note 13) - 163,538
EAth Others (5,178) (2,488)
249,633 414,484
TRTAAFEZRFEE TATELH L Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
N ()EE RN A FEX R R TAERTE the aggregate of (i) HK$324 million fair value loss on hedging
S22 BT (ZF—HF : 1676125 instruments designated as fair value hedge (2017: HK$1,676 million
TCURES ) R RN B A FERE 3251287 gain) and HK$325 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(ZB—tF 1 16.762BT5H) ()T (2017: HK$1,676 million loss); and (i) HK$7 million fair value gain
REXRAXNHRSIUTAENITETIAATE on derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes
We=700 5T (ZF—EF : 200578 (2017: HK$2 million loss) and HK$4 million fair value gain on debt
S RIEENARFEEAIT AR ZENE securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
RITRBIUHF RN FERZEL0F BT (ZF (2017: HK$1 million).

—LE%F : 100 787T) °
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11. Operating expenses

& RPN - Staff costs:
— Fie RAEF — Salaries and benefits 237,081 176,713
— RIREA—AEMHKITL  — Pension costs-defined
contribution plans 13,576 12,060
DRAE : Premises:
— i — Rental 49,845 32,420
— HAh — Others 9,123 6,589
= Ykn Directors’ fees = -
REEFS S5 AER Emoluments in respect of directors’
EEMEAMRS other services in connection with
T2 & : the management of the affairs
of the Company:
— e EMRIELT — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,367 6,184
— IR IRITRIFTIE 2 5K — Retirement scheme contributions 633 616
718 (FFE24) Depreciation (Note 24) 19,371 14,415
W2 ZANBRSS Financial information services 8,259 6,015
B (=] 2% Consultancy fees 17,248 16,526
M kST ESH Marketing and advertising expenses 21,294 15,559
HEmZESH Other operating expenses 29,591 17,099
412,388 304,196

12. #ZEUMENE

12. Auditor’s remuneration

2017

TAT
HK$'000

ZEHEN & Auditor’s remuneration:

— FZARS — Audit services 3,215 1,735

— HMRSE — Other services 1,349 2,151
4,564 3,886
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13. HHETHBERFNWEESET  13. Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale

investments
2018 2017
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEHEERTE Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
Waspam investments:
— A F—HA—BETHSE — Realisation of amounts recognised
IR FIN in reserves up to 1 January - 83,161
— RFEEFFERER 2 — Net gains arising in current year - 80,377
- 163,538
14. BiEKE 14. Charge of impairment allowances
2018 2017
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAER E/ ([E) Charge/(write-back) of impairment
allowances:
— N REES (T 42()) — Cashand short-term funds (Note 4.2(b)) (95) =
— IEHER — Investment securities
— MRS K — amortised cost (Note 4.2(c)(i))
(BE5E 4.2(c))) 197 -
— AR FETMITAEM — FVOCI (Note 4.2(c)(ii))
=Mk (FHE4.2(0)ii) 14 =
— A S (HhHE4.2(a)) — Loan portfolio (Note 4.2(a)) 18 453

134 453
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15. FiI 15. Taxation
(a) LZREWEBTRABFINS : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2018 2017
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBNEH Hong Kong profits tax
— HHEIFI I — Current tax 17,987 21,676
— dEFEREE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (30) 421
17,957 22,097
125 AE T I Deferred taxation
— AFEFEORE)/ZH — (Credit)/charge for current year (77,571) 240
(59,614) 22,337
2N BR8] 7= A B 1 1t Rz IR B s F 4R Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5% (ZF —HF : 16.5%) Wi = 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the period. Deferred
IHREBMEHIRE o BEHRTUAR taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
FUEZ16.5% (ZF—HF : 16.5%) liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2017:
HEERRITE S GRS ZH o 16.5%).
REFAMBRRIDEF MRS KBS The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
ARRTENRLSTNERNAT ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

2018 2017

FHT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRER B A Profit before taxation 66,944 828,732
#16.5% (—ZZF—+t4F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of

R RITE 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 11,046 136,741

FEem : Tax effect of;

— BT A — income not subject to taxation (157,438) (158,786)
— NAHIFBF X — expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 86,808 43,961

— JAFEFE — adjustment in respect of prior years (30) 421

FRIMGRE) / Taxation (credit)/charge (59,614) 22,337
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(b) MFZRRRABDFINIRSZH : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2017
T
HK$'000
= AT U 7= Current tax assets (included in
(BT [EMRE~] H) “Other assets”) - 351
126 AR5 T A = Deferred tax assets 77,866 295
77,866 646
LHAF I R Current tax liabilities 104,077 116,288
F=E-N\F+ZA=+T—HE=ZF There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—tEF+ZA=+—H8  HEEME 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
AR BBERIN ©
BBRERLI (575 ) / S G = 2 LA AK 3D The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
SRENZHAT - the movements during the year are as follows:

HERE
MEBAAIA  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances — A¥EFTFH

tax and  Fairvalue BESH ok
depreciation  provisions changes  Tax losses Total
FHEL FhEL TAL THr FHEL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-%—+5-A-H Asat 1 January 2017 2,811 (3,346) 17,195 - 16,660
TERNAGR/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to
income statement 555 (315) - - 240
FaEnEA Credited to equity = - (17,195) - (17,195)
F-E2—+F+=-RA=1—H Asat31December 2017 3,366 (3,661) - - (295)
ThaERATR/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to
income statement 603 (964) - (77,210) (77,571)
FZE-)\E+t=A=t—H Asat31December 2018 3,969 (4,625) - (77,210) (77,866)
BRIET IR 7= R IR T8 BB ARKN IR Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
%R/ﬁﬁfrlﬁﬁi&ima’]Iﬁ/RTH%E%u\ sufficient future taxable profits will be available for
REAFS S IR TR EALH - realisation. The unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
F+=NAN @ EEFEKZELEFR IR There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
B/ AR EEE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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16. MERBHTRE

16. Cash and short-term funds

RITI € Cash at banks 196,590 93,799
RITE R Time deposits with banks 29,195,211 25,184,391
& MR Re B Gross cash and short-term funds 29,391,801 25,278,190

N& REARSHREL S Impairment allowance on cash and
(B5E4.2(b)) short-term funds (Note 4.2 (b)) (946) -
29,390,855 25,278,190

HRARERMNE  NERFERALU A
BEATERZBHEZIT="HRNEHY

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three

R o months’ maturity from the date of transaction.
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
RITIE Cash at banks 196,590 93,799
RITEBRFR Time deposits with banks 14,581,211 14,992,391
NeRkERIEMA Cash and cash equivalents 14,777,801 15,086,190

17. MW F) B B ICRR

PATS B T R HRLE,

17. Interest and remittance receivables

2018
FHT
HK$'000

Interest receivable from:

2017
TAET

HK$'000

— FERHEA Y — interest rate swap contracts 161,582 143,319
— IEHER — investment securities 135,392 109,921
— RITEAIER — time deposits with banks 99,291 47,075

TISRB A B B R B K Interest receivable and instalments,
> HAf R in transit from loan portfolio 41,654 43,663
437,919 343,978
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18. fT£EEMIH

PTAETRMNA

REH R T 5974 T BN AR & H
H & RX S o

M BA L RERK B BATEE
FEHPL R SL e H E SN BRI © 5]
M R A = 2 8 A — 4B T i 8 R ER
F—AIERENEE - RS
DA RS E LA IR o BRET
BEMERNN  RFERZ TSR
& o ARENETRNRIRZZHF R
EETEREMEERBA LA

A - RERREFENEFESZR S
XM E RS FF LN B KK

% o

ETHXAERIANRBLET N
TREMS ARG TEIRH—
NEEBREVEE - ERD RS R R
kA REN T TELRAILRF
B - Bt - FF R ARAN S E E I &Y
ERHINIBREL - fg & T i7H = &L
ERAX R R REOR S - STET A AR
MNASEH = EEF (R =) AR (7
) BN - fTESRITANS LHK
BULMBEH - ERB AN
18E - MOTETESRE~RAGRZ
RN BIE - ATRETET RIBK S o AT
BRTETAAFERTTIX

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group'’s financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial
position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as
a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign
exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate
contractual or notional amounts of derivative financial
instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate
fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can
fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of
derivative instruments held are set out below.
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a4/ At
£UEH AYE 28 AFE

Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional "= il notional B il
amounts Assets Liabilities  amounts Assets  Liabilities
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

() PREXANR2UAES () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

fTETA for accounting purposes
pilkssl Interest rate swaps 3,023,290 11,041 3017791 6,235 (2,188)
SMEHAY Currency forwards 3,315,395 700 (565) - - -
1,741 (642) 6,235 (2,188)
(i) ATENATEIR (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
= Interest rate swaps 14,246,974 129,153 (78,663) 13908877 176,586 (65,975)
Gl Currency swaps 8,455,076 20,153 (185,081) 7302494 150,906 (50,901)
149,306 (263,744) 327,492 (116,876)
EWINMTETRERS/ Total recognised derivative
(fff) 58 assets/(liabilities) 161,047  (264,386) 333,727 (119,064)
(b) XrhiEzD (b) Hedging activities
WATHE T AERN A FEN BRI ER Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
X et ERmE  STETAEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
M B 754 J AR A% o AREF N FE fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
WA ETEAERATFRERAE XTES currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk and
IF 5N FAER R SR 2 P53 foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change in
FI R X e FNHNSC XS B Fl| 2= F 5 s fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
Ho F-E—NE+—A=+—HEF no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
—ET—+F+-_A=+—8  HEE December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

AEEAR SR HITETA -
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19.

IREEHE 19. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERAESEKES (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2018 2017
F#&T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERIBERAS Residential mortgage portfolio 6,179,353 7,484,605
B RAEE Non-mortgage portfolio 263,377 345,222
6,442,730 7,829,827
RHORERK & (HhHE4.2() Allowance for loan impairment
(Note 4.2(a)) (666) (386)
6,442,064 7,829,441
PRORER S BT RHAR HARE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
BARSERNBEDLLAT ¢ outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2018 2017
THORERK & B8 5 Total allowance for loan impairment
HEBARE DL as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.010% 0.005%
ER R FOR(ERK B6 - BEERKIF S Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
KB RITH{E ° into account the current market value of the collateral.
2018 2017
BERRAS BFERR Gross impaired loan portfolio as
HEBIME DL a percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.007% 0.005%
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(b) BREASHMRMBIHETHRAS (b) Net investments in finance leases included in loan

#

portfolio

= AL
RUIE
Present value

of minimum
lease payments
receivable
TET

HK$'000

2018
AR A1 #Y
FMEWA
Interest
income
relating
to future
periods
THET
HK$'000

RIER WAL
RIS A
Total
minimum
lease
payments
receivable
THER
HK$'000

RIMRI : Amounts receivable:

— —FK — within one year 25,533 5,341 30,874

——FFERFN — after one year but within five years 85,546 16,329 101,875

—HER — after five years 142,565 17,318 159,883
253,644 38,988 292,632

IV GEED)
ABNE
Present value

of minimum
lease payments
receivable
TET
HK$'000

2017

Ak EAEIA
FMEBA
Interest
income
relating

to future
periods
THT
HK$'000

SV
Total
minimum
lease
payments
receivable
TAET
HK$'000

BRI - Amounts receivable:

— —FK — within one year 30,678 6,618 37,296

——FFEREN — after one year but within five years 109,174 20,535 129,709

—hEF — after five years 193,169 23,879 217,048
333,021 51,032 384,053

YR B R AR 40 B UK SR A H BT RURE K

£ o

lease receivable.
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20. Investment securities

20. IEHFIRHF

(a) DAFETMHITAEGE2EW (a) Investment securities at FVOCI

ERRYIE SR BT

N THEYIKE RS IE 5 Debt securities at fair value
THBELET Listed in Hong Kong 587,702 =
TEHBRIN T Listed outside Hong Kong 2,128,745 =
kL 2,375,217 -
AAFEERMITAEMEE  Total FVOCI securities
W5 RO UE 25 B AR 5,091,664 -

SAZRN B AR 1 A At 2 T MR A E
FEREHEFIES  EPaNlleRg
RMARERANE - MARERE UL
FRSIEH 2 Al SR H B A5 & W
BeafdleRnE8REESRA MR
Il e

BRATIERI DT AR FEZA T
AE M EREMIESFNT

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

2017*
THT
HK$'000
RITREH A S B Banks and other financial institutions 4,266,072 =
Nalall Corporate entities 795,487 -
NENAM Public sector entities 30,105 -
5,091,664 -
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The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:

AAHER I AR AL 2 E U EE A IE
FHRFIBRINT

F—A—8 (k£3.1(c) As at 1 January (Note 3.1(c)) 5,480,912 -
N Additions 1,307,246 -
IS4 Redemption (1,693,196) -
REEH Amortisation (2,534) -
NEZ D) Change in fair value (7,182) -
HNTUC R ERR Exchange difference 6,418 -
F+=—HA=+—H As at 31 December 5,091,664 -
* BIEME20() TR - ZERRTF_Z—+ * These investments were classified as available-for-sale in 2017 as

FHRAAELEE o disclosed in Note 20(d).

BRRBE - ERRERASEEETREA
R FE 4.2(c) #EEE -

Information on the impairment, credit quality and the Group's
exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 4.2(c).

(b) BDIAFEZTHITANRENIES (b) Investment securities at FVPL
®B’&E

2017*

TAT
HK$'000

BN FEVIKNRZ FFrEs=E Exchange-traded funds and real estate
EREHFRRAEEES investment funds at fair value
TEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong 543,612 =

AAFEZTHIT ARZMIES  Total FVPL securities

BE

543,612 =

RERBT S LM HER AT ESIA
RN EEAIT A M 2 AR R
RAFIREET M- IRREEE
SEEMIEFRR D ENARNFEEL
it Afas o

The Group classifies other investment securities in
exchange-traded funds and real estate investments trusts
at FVPL, which do not quality for measurement at either
amortised cost or FVOCI.
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A AFEZRHEIT ARERIESFHEE D) The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:
BRI ¢
2017*
FHET
HK$'000
F—A—8 (kHE3.1) As at 1 January (Note 3.1(a)) 1,657,750 -
3 Additions 16,644 -
nf=— Sale (1,096,226) =
NEEZD Change in fair value (35,278) -
SN R ZEE Exchange difference 722 =
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 543,612 -
* RIEHTE20(d) FTHE R - ZERAET T —+ & These investments were classified as available-for-sale in 2017 as
FHEAAELE © disclosed in Note 20(d).
(c) IRPESHAAATIMEYIESHIR T (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

2018 2017*

TERx TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

LR AN IR B 5 55U 5 Debt securities at amortised cost

THEEL™ Listed in Hong Kong 6,317,348 =
TEHEARIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 2,106,090 -
8,423,438 -
| ) Unlisted 3,124,837 -
T 45 Ak 7R BI) IR B9 A 5 #% & Gross investment securities at
kil amortised cost 11,548,275 -
T B K AR DI DK Y IE A A HY) Impairment allowance on
BB % (FHE4.2(0))) investment securities at
amortised cost (Note 4.2(c)(i)) (1,442) -
LSRR IKEVIE S B8 Total amortised costs securities 11,546,833 -
REBN T RN FEIATREZ B The Group classifies investment securities as at amortised
B - EAJ%LE%&J@“*?]&}X&%EZ cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
5 K
. SRR E B AR NFFE R = . the asset is held within a business model with the
WmENNeRE & objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
. BIEE LRI E B BN e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
enENEHATINERESH cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
REERSEMAIFE interest on the principal outstanding.
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2 R ATHLADZE Bl 5 A He e 8 A AN 71 Amortised cost securities are analysed by categories of
BIEFLAT issuers as follows:

R1T R E AL S ALY Banks and other financial institutions 5,075,984 -
rajil Corporate entities 4,904,367 -
NEM Public sector entities 540,768 -
R BT Central governments 1,027,156 =
11,548,275 -
&P B R ARSI K A IE 25 B AR 2 2R The movement in amortised cost securities is summarised as
T~ follows:
2018 2017*
F#ET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—A—8 (fHE3.1() As at 1 January (Note 3.1(b)) 10,347,834 =
0 Additions 1,855,361 -
HERED Sale and redemption (653,843) =
P4 Amortisation (11,141) =
ANTSE W ZE AT Exchange difference 10,064 -
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 11,548,275 -
& BIEHME20(€) FTHKEE - ZEFRET= # These investments were classified as held-to-maturity in 2017 as
TE—EFEHENFHEEE - disclosed in Note 20(e).
BXREMAE - ERRRERAEREIN Information on the impairment, credit quality and the Group’s
RS B9 Bk T HE 4.2(0) #R 8 - exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 4.2(c).
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(d) TJEHEES (d) Available-for-sale securities
2017
FET
HK$'000
BN FEYKE GRS IES Debt securities at fair value
TEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong - 279,317
FEARINET Listed outside Hong Kong - 2,315,572
L Unlisted - 2,886,023
N FES K& H A IE S Other securities at fair value
THEBEM Listed in Hong Kong - 1,657,750
A H EUE 5 B AR Total available-for-sale securities - 7,138,662
HMIFFIER SR EE S REH Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
BRERES - estate investment trusts.
2 EATHAIZE R 5 H7 AT 4 H &S5 40 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T~ issuers as follows:
2017
TET
HK$'000
RITRE A S B Banks and other financial institutions - 4,040,368
Al Corporate entities - 909,924
NEHA Public sector entities - 30,740
HAih Others - 2,157,630
- 7,138,662
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AR EIEAR A SIBLA AT ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:

+—HA—H As at 1 January - 6,977,677
0 Additions - 3,144,426
HE REE Sale and redemption - (3,212,744)
i Amortisation - (4,493)
NEZ ) Change in fair value - 191,162
HNTL R Z R Exchange difference - 42,634
F+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December - 7,138,662
e) FHEEZHESH (e) Held-to-maturity securities

2018 2017

FERT THETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

IR AN TR A9 5 55 1UE 5 Debt securities at amortised cost

TEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong - 5,501,627
TEAREIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong - 1,959,044
- 7,460,671
JEET Unlisted - 2,887,163
A EIHIE A B Total held-to-maturity securities - 10,347,834
AT R D AT A = B B 5 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
N issuers as follows:

R1T R E A S LAY Banks and other financial institutions - 4,955,910
NG Corporate entities - 4,299,090
NENM Public sector entities - 471,079
AR Central governments - 621,755

- 10,347,834

262 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



REMEIREKME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAZIMESFORFIBRNT

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised

as follows:
2017
T
HK$'000
+—A—H As at 1 January - 9,931,665
0 Additions - 3,112,996
N [e] Redemption - (2,746,656)
WEEH Amortisation - (17,279)
NTISE 5 Z 8 Exchange difference - 67,108
F+-—A=+—H As at 31 December - 10,347,834

21. INCEEER

REABEBEBFEARMNINCESFER
DEAUAFEZHITABRSNS R
FeFE-—NE+-A=+—8 " 4L
ESHERERNT7TLZET(ZE—L5F:
) BEAEBHN76{ZET(ZT—F
F:R)METRIRACHEKEE ZiHEH
RIEEUAURA o

SNCESFFIRATINCESHRAAS
REHBRAS  AXUMEREARS -
SNCEETFHREREZFETE - MRS
BmE  BREIDRERFAALSEANF
EEFEHEREK FFE=FHERF G
FEHWEE (TR I 0%) ITE - ARSE R
e MKMERASTS - DWIRETIIRE
ZREE R [A) pOAN [ 3R R B E e

21. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of HKMCA with the
Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. As at 31 December 2018, the balance of the placements
with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$7.7 billion (2017: nil),
comprising a total principal sum of HK$7.6 billion (2017: nil) plus
income earned and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the
reporting date.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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22. Interests in subsidiaries

22. MIEATHRE

F_FE—N\EFE+-_A=+—8 ' AQFAH

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2018

MEARFEET are as follows:
BTN
HEAH
(FEHREA)
HAR Frig R4 8y
ERITRARRGFEE (FHREA) BA%
(Rtpioksl) fitifke  Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of  shares held by
RS and fully paid up shares held by  the Company's
Place of FELE share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation  Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
BRIRBERAR AR B AR ERZIBG - /M 1,000,00087 (EEkK) 100% TEH
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong AR - RERTENT  HK$1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
Management ERENFREXRAYEE
Limited TN DR BT R HE
Mortgage purchases and
servicing, funding of
microfinance loans, and
origination of reverse
mortgage loans and
loans for land premium
settlement in relation
to subsidised sale flats
referred by banks
BEERIRRERART &% —RR{RB %5 3,000,000,00038 7T (L&i@A%) 100% TER
HKMC Insurance Limited®  Hong Kong General insurance business  HK$3,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
BEFEARAR" B KRR % 5,000,000,00038 7T (& @R%) 100% TER
HKMC Annuity Limited” Hong Kong Long term insurance business HK$5,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
EARBIIFRA(5-) BF FE-\FHEFLED 1,008 (LBR) NER TER
BRRE* Hong Kong No business activity in 2018 HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
HKMC Funding Corporation
(1) Limited*
Bauhinia MBS Limited* FERHS FE-NFHEFLEZ  1,000%7T(LER) TER ™ER
Cayman Islands  No business activity in 2018 US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
EREBERRIERAR &8 TEIRE 187 (E@k) TER 100%
HKMC Credit & Guarantee  Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage B TEIRS 187 (Sdik) TER 100%
Credit & Guarantee Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
Corporation Limited
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RIBEB(LRAKPDNR - BEATHE L
HHE R KA TR ARBIRTE
TRBIEFTARL - MALRIRERAEX
BN FIRORR ©

T-_Z-NF-_A RRAFAZER
2,999,999,900 & 7T + bA*I B ERUER S 22 A1 &Y
ERITRAREAIZET - BIEAREK
TEe  MTF=—E—-—N\FEA ' RIERRK
RABRREL L 15 E B IE R - AT MR
NEEBH—RERR S - £ EREBSE -
AABEBHEETHEETELE —RFRILAL
SHIRN

FZE-N\FNA ' BMESINCES AR
ARIREFINOZ B TR A - RE - AR
AIRABBFE A RIER4,999,999,9007C
ERNBBFESLNAREF2USHB/RAR - T
- N\FRA BBEFELARRKRR LG
EREMN I THEBBLRERKHRRE L

%Ko

23. PRI « HRE R HAL T

These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares in
these companies which are set up for mortgage purchases and mortgage-
backed securities issuance.

In February 2018, the Company injected HK$2,999,999,900 to make up
issued and paid-up capital of HK$3 billion of the HKMCI without allotting and
issuing new shares and the HKMCI was granted formal authorisation from
the Insurance Authority to carry on general insurance business which was
transferred from the Company in May 2018. Subsequent to the said transfer, the
Company withdrew its authorisation to carry on general insurance business in
or from Hong Kong.

In April 2018, the Government through the Exchange Fund provided additional
share capital of HK$5 billion into the Company. HK$4,999,999,900 was injected
by the Company into the HKMCA on the same day as share capital for the latter
to operate the annuity business. The HKMCA was granted authorisation by the
Insurance Authority to carry on long term insurance business in or from Hong
Kong in May 2018.

23. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2017

FBTT

HK$'000

UNGIE=S -3 Corporate club debentures 750 750

= DY 32 H B 1 R s R CSA receivable 137,483 29,315
ERE HERITEEMHRSSIES  Receivables from debt securities executed

B9 7 IR for settlement after the reporting date 488,021 =

EAth 7 YL FR I Other receivable 172,306 3,279

W[5 7= Repossessed assets - 4,324

B = Other assets 30,931 29,486

829,491 67,154
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24. EEHF 24. Fixed assets
DAERE
RAREE
office
BFEMLEE  equipment, A
Leasehold furniture and B K Motor Jk i
improvement fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TR THRL TR TEx TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-2—+t#-A-H Net book amount as at
TR 240 1 January 2017 5,805 669 11,848 205 18,527
NE Additions 11,879 812 17,526 - 30,217
FIR(FHE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (6,131) (599) (7,59) 87) (14,415)
F-E—tF+-A=1—H Netbook amount as at
G 31 December 2017 11,553 882 21776 118 34,329
NE Additions 7,961 4,228 26,619 - 38,808
R (FnE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (5,579) (1,074) (12,630) (89) (19,371)
F=%-)\E+=BA=1—-H Net book amount as at
K28 31 December 2018 13,935 4,036 35,765 30 53,766
F=%-)\5+=BA=1—-H Asat31December 2018
RAE Cost 47755 12,759 218,355 775 279,644
ESapiitls Accumulated depreciation (33,820) 8723) (182,590) (745) (225,878)
IKE 28 Net book amount 13,935 4,036 35,765 30 53,766
F-Z2—tF+-A=1—H Asat31December 2017
KAME Cost 39,794 8,576 191,736 775 240,881
2114718 Accumulated depreciation (28,241) (7,694) (169,960) (657) (206,552)
EEE Net book amount 11,553 882 21,776 118 34,329
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25. MfTFIE

AT B IH R ALS

25. Interest payable

2017

TAET
HK$'000

Interest payable from:

— BETHRSIESH — debt securities issued 229,577 181,799
— FEEHELN — interest rate swap contracts 20,088 5,927
— H o fi — other liabilities 7,803 4,407

257,468 192,133

26. PRI » R AT R H A A

26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

& liabilities
2017
FBTT
HK$'000
RLAS MR I3 R R A FF =2 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 248,121 374,373
H fth A fix Other liabilities 4,762,799 4,945,650
ik & Other provision 50,759 43,240
5,061,679 5,363,263

E AR b BRI R T AR
BIEERHE HEFTUR B MR AR 28 R 34 3% (B 4Bk
B R & 48 5% FF £ ) 370,511,000 T (= &
—4F 1 626,271,000 7T) (HE33) * 5
FERT_EE=F+-AK=_ZTMF
— A BT EMIRB R s HE N
8 i H i JE K 0 4,392,288,000 8 T (= =
—+4F © 4,319,379,000% 7T °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee and fund received
(net of claims and related expenses) of HK$370,511,000 (2017:
HK$626,271,000) under the special concessionary measures of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 33) and the deferred
consideration of HK$4,392,288,000 (2017: HK$4,319,379,000) used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004.
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27. (REEAGRBERES T 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2018 217
£ BRE A5 £ Birk

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  ReinsLrance
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

—fRRRL% General insurance;
AAHRERERRRLS Provision for uneamed premiums and
guarantee fees 1,290,372 166,383 1,123,989 1,095,805 160,143 935,662
RREREE Provision for outstanding claims:
— B R/ (B kE) B — claims reported/(recovery) 2,236 1) 2,237 7135 193 6942
—BFERRHRAZ — claims incurred but not reported 30236 5,136 25,100 27210 4265 2945
32,472 5135 21,331 34,345 4,458 29881
1,322,844 171,518 1,151,326 1,130,150 164,601 965,549
AFERE Life insurance:
REFEAR Policyholders' liabilities 3,284,529 - 3284529 - - -
4,607,373 171,518 4,435,855 1,130,150 164,601 965,549
(a) —fRIFRWE (a) Generalinsurance
() FFEDHRBERERZARRT (i) Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
IO premiums and guarantee fees

2018 2017
B2 BRE A8 EH Blfk

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross — Reinsurance
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

T-A-H Asat 1January 1,095,805 160,143 935,662 1,013,155 142,155 871,000
BMERE (E9) Premiums written (Note 9) 634,757 69,018 565,739 193459 76,383 17,076
BRSR (HE9) Premiums earmed (Note 9) (440,190) (62,778) (377,412) (410,809) (58,395) (352.414)
Ft+-B=1-H As at 31 December 1,290,372 166,383 1,123,989 1,095,805 160,143 935,662
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@iy RARPRBIBEDIDTEAT (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims

2018 17
E2 BiRK A5 £ Bk 25

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinslirance Net
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

T-A-H Asat 1 January 34,345 4,458 29,887 35,395 3872 31,523

BEES Claims paid (7,556) = (7,556) (£978) (510) (4468)

EhE=Z Claims recovery 1,908 294 1,614 2448 57 2191

B4 /(B3) BER Claims incurred/(written back)

(FE9) : (Note 9):

— EFfRER — Claims reported 749 (4g8) 1237 (1316 m (1,527

—EFEERERER — claims incurred but not reported 3,026 871 2,155 219 628 2,168
3775 383 3,392 1480 839 641

Ft-A=t-H As at 31 December 32472 5,135 27,331 34,345 4,458 29.887

(b) AFHEREE (b) Life insurance
() REEEAABREDDH (i)  Analysis of movement in policyholders’ liabilities

2018 217
E2 1 BRE A5 £ Blrk A5

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinstrance Net
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-A-A As at 1 January - - = - = =
ERBRREMFE Claims and benefits paid (33,116) - (33,116) - - -
EEEERRRERBALRE  Clamsincurred and movement

Tz (Hhx9) in policyholders' iabiities (Note 9) 3,317,645 - 3,317,645 - - -
F+-A=1-H As at 31 December 3,284,529 - 3,284,529 - - -
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(c)

(ii)

FERRRABTITNG A

WTKBARRE LD - ZFRIK
SFFER T REH o FFEFR
BAELBERIT R -

RAE NN E RN ol Bz alb
ZPD)RE BRI (KH 7
FREE) AN DE G - 54 Hl
AFZRETERAEETEDN
ARTHEEHITHE - TR
NIRRERIASNE -

T fRFE RN

HITREFELNIRE - ZEESHEY
NeERERRRAEZASZHEXI
MEMIRMGEI NMHERFZ
—N\F+ZA=+—BR=ZT—tF
TZRA=+—H ' KERAHRK 7

TR e

(c)

(i) Key assumptions and reserving approach

For long term insurance contracts, economic
assumptions are continually reviewed and updated.
Non-economic assumptions are reviewed at least
annually.

Based on generally accepted actuarial principles and
in accordance with Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation of
the Insurance Ordinance, the valuation of individual life
liabilities was carried out using the Modified Net Level
Premium Valuation method, subject to a minimum of
the surrender value.

Liability adequacy test

The liability adeguacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as
claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group's insurance liabilities
are adequate.
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28. ERITIRSIES

28. Debt securities issued

2017

TAET
HK$'000

TR P EH B AR BITK BY 453 55 1E 25 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
H R MTN 14,540,716 13,260,416
IR MEAE R R IRV RS5E 55 581 Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 14,540,716 13,260,416
FEEAXHIE H LA FEXF Debt securities designated as hedged
RS 35 items under fair value hedge
S5 T ARITITNIGRS DIP notes 1,808,922 2,948,131
f HA iz MTN 20,799,258 18,490,213
EE RXDRIE HALFEX R Total debt securities designated as
HMRZIE % S50 hedged items under fair value hedge 22,608,180 21,438,344
FamBIAIEENLLAFEE  Debt securities designated as at fair
FhIT AR SRS S value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition
s THERITIHRIff DIP notes 143,981 141,946
THaINRFEE NANF(E  Total debt securities designated as at
T AR ARSIUES S50 fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition 143,981 141,946
B AITHRFIES BA0 Total debt securities issued 37,292,877 34,840,706

FREERT(ZE—LF + k) THHRE
N B A A FEE AT AR B 5SS IE
Fo REMFUEFZAFEEDRTEE
FRH A o FHAFIAR - FENUL
FEZHITARSN SO GIKEE W B
RNEFRES QP E T B B A AR AR
A A £ 0 40,019,000 T (=&
—+4F : 42,054,000/ 7C) °

RE R UL T EFIKE S RA RS
REAER Y EHARENEREFEA
BT -

During the year, no debt securities (2017: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$40,019,000 (2017: HK$42,054,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in

the credit risk of the Group for those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value.
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BEITHRFIEAFRNRDIBLAAT The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

+—H—H As at 1 January 34,706,897 35,782,600
KA1 Issuance 34,074,308 28,428,582
B e Less: Redemption (31,289,536) (29,509,026)
SNTSC R E Exchange difference 3,154 4,741
B NINME LA Total nominal value 37,494,823 34,706,897
RFEITLEES S Unamortised portion of discount (92,638) (85,832)
NFEIFE Fair value adjustment (109,308) 219,641
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 37,292,877 34,840,706
REEZRITHEGRS Notes issued during the year comprise:
RHEAfR 35
MTN
TET
HK$'000
B AT HE{E Amount issued at nominal value 34,074,308
B YCER SR Consideration received 34,006,865
FTA B R1THERESIE S Y E A& B T H R All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
R MATZEGRSIERFEERE K Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
BEReRIEBRERE - working capital and refinancing.
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29. IgA& 29. Share capital

2017
AT
HK$'000

BEAITREE : Issued and fully paid:
2012 A% & EA% 2 billion ordinary shares 7,000,000 2,000,000

R A A N The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:

TERT
HK$'000
F—F—tF+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 2,000,000
ER Capital injection 5,000,000
F-Z-)N\E+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2018 7,000,000

30. 58XEATITIIMNEKXIS  30. Material related party transactions

(8 ARnAEIRELE RN BT BMEE R (@) The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are owned
KINCESEBAGHATEA - A by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as Controller of
ERATAFENSTIBREATIT the Exchange Fund. The Group entered into the following
YU TEARRS : material transactions with the following related parties during

the year:

SBFEANMEEEE RN S Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,

N are as follows:

i) AEBCABEEEERME (i)  the Group subscribed to the custodian and clearing
ZEHHRSEIAERREE RS agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
R ATIRHIEE REERER Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid a total fee
% FHETA B80T B amount of HK$1.8 million (2017: HK$1.6 million) to the
T(ZZFE—tF :160F%ET) HKMA for such services during the year;
BEBRER  ERALRFERE
Rz HEER

(i)  ANRRFARFE4H1,7807% (i) the Company incurred a secondment fee of HK$17.8
TT(ZE—+t4F : 1,660 7E7T) million (2017: HK$16.6 million) for secondees from the
BiEA%  (EANEERERE HKMA during the year;
BRAIMZFEA
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(iif)

(iv)

ARBTAFEHNOT AT
(ZZF—t5F 60FBT) TE
BEER  FARSZAHR

F5

THEETABSIIINCES
A 725 22 A1 42 4 30012 7 JT B9 1@
Mol FZE—-NE+=A
=t —BHEREERF(ZF
—tF: X)) K

TREET AETINCES K
RN RDEAGINE & =ik
200128 TTAE R AR A - PAR B
ARRAEBFE QBRI
AR MARBEREREE
FERREAMNIINE S 1E
NEBAR - AEFHEEFEA
B RN —EKF -

SRR ZN

0]

(i)

RN B) T AN E AW R A Al
ERMR281ZET(—E—+
F 2932 RIBEFK - K

AEHRIE PR PNDFRE
Ritxl - REALEN R
K B R S A B BT R
UEAAEE 91,0002 7089 /AR
BREBOIFERS M F
BRI THE33

(iii)

(iv)

the Company paid a back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2017: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year,

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund has
provided the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving
Credit Facility and there was no outstanding balance as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil); and

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
has committed to inject additional funds up to HK$20
billion into the Company as equity for the purpose of
financing the Company’s additional capital injection
into the HKMCA, and the Company has committed to
inject such additional funds into the HKMCA as equity
to maintain the HKMCA’s margin of solvency above a
certain level.

Transactions with the Government are as follows:

(i)

(i)

the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$281
million (2017: HK$293 million) from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated during the year; and

the Group provided a loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee
commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the
Government with details set out in Note 33.
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SEERBEEBERAR (KARAW

2RMERA) MR HEE TS

I :

(@)

RRB ARG KA B AR E
[R5 B Ko it % T B — AR R B
RENERREHERAS - A -F
—\FEA—BE  —&ixbk
Al S5 AR R B ERIERER
REE - RIERER QB AEE
RIBEEARABELER IS
IR IRIE RIS R 1T R R &
BT Y TR ZIRIBHTK
RN 5 BT AR 11 %) T B9 %N
bt BT 3K P I 3K B 1248 BT iR
HIRPARE + 2

ARB(ENTREEE) &
BRIBERERABIEESS
RITWERBRA)ATAZ/ N TR
FIT R TR REFRS S
BB BRBEBRRRARE
N2 EBRE /N FIR MR

N7 )

5FBF N AIFIRIERE 2 7] (85
AARARNEEMERR)HZH M

T

0]

AR BHRH &S IE 100128 T
HETANBEEFE LA R
HEglbSReHie T-F
—N\F+ZHA=+—BHOER
A3SI0FETL(ZF—LF:
x)

AR AR FR =5 201278 T Y
ERUMBIZIERE AR A E
bERfERs F_E—N\F
+—A=t—"BHEER(=F
—kEFX):

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)

the Company provided funding for acquisition and
origination of loans with general insurance cover under
different programmes and schemes of the Company.
Following the transfer of general insurance business
from the Company to the HKMCI effective from 1
May 2018, the HKMCI provided insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by the HMML under the
MIP, and reverse mortgage loans under the Reverse
Mortgage Programme (RMP) and loans for premium
settlement under the Premium Loan Insurance Scheme
originated by the HMML in the course of the ordinary
business; and

the Company as scheme operator, the HMML and
various participating banks as loan originators
entered into loan participation agreements under the
Microfinance Scheme pursuant to which the HMML
would fund all or part of the microfinance loans.

Transactions with the HKMCA or the HKMCI, both being
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are as follows:

the Company provided a facility up to HK$10 billion to
assist the HKMCA in funding its operations in relation
to the annuity business and there was an outstanding
balance of HK$35.1 million as at 31 December 2018
(2017: nil);

the Company provided a facility up to HK$2 billion to
assist the HKMCI in funding its operations and there
was no outstanding balance as at 31 December 2018
(2017: nily;
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(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

RN B SRR A RITM I
SERLH - AEBIRILIRG
REMBEREARERE IS EIE
SREAATENERRDS - F
MEFI B FF 71,360 78T
mMTFr=FE—N\F+=ZA=+—
B @ RILRRE A RN & 7R
HEER

RARSEBFE AR
CIFERLH LAEBRESRE
FERANRRARRIER S
EEURBFAFENAERA
T FANMEITTX 72107
B mTF=E—N\F+=A
=t—8B BEFEAFNHA
SFRERN 4,400 H7ETT

ARBH—RRRLSE -F
—N\FHEA-BREBERIE
REAE - THEBRE W NAF
EREETHERELE K
PRIUE AL 55 B IR AN © AR A FhI%
IR AR ZERITHINE —
AROR B b 25 R At R PR = AE R 3R
EFRz5RRARLEARIE
RIRIE + &

ARRSERFERARAE
BEENEEE 650 7B TTH

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

the Company entered into a cash placement
arrangement with the HKMCI for managing the initial
capital and surplus funds generated in the normal
course of business operations of the HKMCI. The
interest expense thereon was HK$13.6 million during
the year and there was no outstanding balance for the
cash placement from the HKMCI as at 31 December
2018;

the Company entered into a cash placement
arrangement with the HKMCA for managing the initial
capital and surplus funds generated in the normal
course of business operations of the HKMCA. The
interest expense thereon was HK$2.1 million during the
year and there was an outstanding balance of HK$44
million for the cash placement from the HKMCA as at 31
December 2018;

the Company’s general insurance business was
transferred to the HKMCI with effect from 1 May 2018.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Company withdrew its
authorisation to carry on general insurance business
in or from Hong Kong. The Company issued a parental
guarantee in favour of the participating lenders for the
HKMCI's due performance of its obligations arising from
its existing general insurance business programmes
and schemes; and

the Company entered into a novation agreement
with the HKMCA regarding the novation of an annuity
system of HK$6.5 million to the HKMCA.
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AalmEMER RRE Sl There were arrangements whereby the Company provided
BIRSEASERELH - ZERXFHH headoffice corporate support services and funding
FREATEEERE - arrangements to its subsidiaries. Fees on these transactions

are determined on an arm’s length basis.

FH-A=+t—HNMBEREALHN The balances of the amounts due from/to the relevant related
MUY/ TERTT parties as at 31 December are as follows:

MCES B
The Exchange Fund The Government
2018 2017 2018 2017

TR TAL TR TRT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

ICESER(HHE21) Placements with the Fxchange

Fund (Note 21) 7,734,934 - - -
H 15k (tE 26 | 33) Other liabilities (Notes 26 and 33) - - 4,762,799 4,945,650
(b) FEEEBEAR (b) Key management personnel
FEBERARNEESREERNT Key management personnel are those persons having
RATURK -~ 181 Riz6I AR E AL % authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
WAL BEEERSREEAR - controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

including directors and senior officers.

AEEETEEHRREAANSMAOT ¢ Key management personnel’s compensation for the year is
as follows:
2018 2017
F#ET T
HK$°'000 HK$'000
e hEHAMAEHRE AR Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 23,270 21,426
BINEREF Post-employment benefits 2,274 2,088

25,544 23,514
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31. #%i8 31. Commitments
(a) #XF (@) capital

2017
FHBT
HK$'000
EREAERITS Authorised and contracted for 803 4,176
BHRUEERITY Authorised but not contracted for 42,269 41,784
43,072 45,960

(b) EEFHY (b) Operating lease

FoREK  BERTERNEER Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

WTTFHEE #5k kB AR AR o1 205 50 operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
analysed as follows:

DT :
2017
FAIT
HK$'000
DREYL Office premises:

— P E T — not later than one year 53,197 49,179

— T —FETELZTHEF — later than one year and not later
than five years 50,313 94,993

103,510 144,172

32. IHBREITRI R LEIRBITR  32. Mortgage Insurance Programme and Reverse
Mortgage Programme

F_ZE-—NF+-_A=+—8 KX&EHAK As at 31 December 2018, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
BIRE 1T RI A K QIR IR B84 9 237 27T the MIP is approximately HK$23.7 billion (2017: HK$21.1 billion) of
(ZZB—+t%F : 21124 7T) » EFR40125T which HK$4 billion (2017: HK$3.5 billion) was ceded to the approved
(ZF—+t%F : 352% ) EMZEBRR reinsurers and the balance of HK$19.7 billion (2017: HK$17.6 billion)
NAEIMEEBRE - mMASENBfTABR was retained by the Group.

19728 T (ZF—+1 4 176423 7T) B

MBS °

FZE-—N\F+ZA=+—8 1Ex&EHA As at 31 December 2018, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
AR KR EZIZBIT XN IZIR 2L H 96 the RMP borne by the Group was approximately HK$9.6 billion
ZBTT(ZFE—CF : 691Z8TT) ° (2017: HK$6.9 billion).

278 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



mEMSEIRKRME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33.

34.

s/ B EE BEHE (R TR T 8945 51
R EEh

AEARAFOR/NERABRITR - 52
AL BB AR 2K F Je iy BT 2 A 8L BT
FARUEAGEER N 1,0004278 T 89 A AR R IR
FE &Y DTSRI AR 7= dh o B UL TS RIS STHEAR
PR AT EAR TR - B HEEEHA T X
MHEXNOARENEEXTX  AERK
TR 52 J8 T BT © 4R AT 4R ER Y FEAR 25 1 2
AR AR AR A - BTS2 AER
e AREARRU - ROEEFABBRE
BETX -

BREXNMERINGFHER> @ WAKH
MiEARERILARBRERNEA - &
HREIEMERBEXRTHREFEMW -
ETAKHRRRRBAEZ L™ m > K
SHEIAR A UL fn ) XU A F 2525 /8 T
B o B+ %7 an ) XU 2GR HR B 51
TARKH MR = RERINA ©

REMEREE

T-E-hNF AEHETH2AMBELR
BRIERE R B SINCESITL R AT
R B TZE-AFOA=+
H @ RIERR A RIE 302 BT HFEAINLE
T MZEFRRA TINCESHRFE A
& BREDRERFAE T ENFHF
HEREg FFE=FARAGRAFRFY
W R (TRN0%)IHE - URESENE °

33.

34.

Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provides a loan guarantee product with 80% guarantee
coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary guarantee fee
rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion
reimbursable by the Government. All guarantee fees collected
under this special loan guarantee product are set aside to meet the
relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket expenses. The
remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will be returned
to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government. The Group
is responsible for the operation of the product and the applicable
day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there was no
impact on the consolidated income statement of the Group in
respect of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct
expenses involved. Given that the Group only operates this product
for the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence,
the risk-in-force for this product is not included as the Group's off-
balance sheet exposures.

Events occurring after the reporting period

The Group through its wholly-owned subsidiary, the HKMCI,
entered into a capital placement agreement with the Exchange
Fund in 2019, pursuant to which, on 30 April 2019, the HKMCI
placed HK$3 billion with the Exchange Fund, and such placements
were invested in the Investment Portfolio of the Exchange Fund
with a rate of return calculated on the basis of the average annual
rate of return on the portfolio over the past six years or the average
annual yield of three-year Government Bond in the previous year
(subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the higher.
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35. AATIMME R REREZT 35. Statement of financial position and reserve

=) movement of the Company
B1IEXTF=-FE—NE+=AH 35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
=+—HBMFIKRER 31 December 2018
2018 2017
T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B ASSETS
NeRGHRS Cash and short-term funds 27,251,724 25,273,955
BRI B ROC R Interest and remittance receivables 392,545 337,353
PELEIA Derivative financial instruments 161,047 333,727
AR 25 Loan portfolio, net 4,219,189 5,110,754
SRR Investment securities:
— UAFERITAEA — at fair value through
SERE other comprehensive income 5,091,664 -
— AP EREIT AR — at fair value through profit or loss 543,612 =
— EPE AR AT K — at amortised cost 8,938,368 -
— AfEHE — available-for-sale - 7,138,662
—RBEEEH — held-to-maturity - 10,347,834
M AR R Interests in subsidiaries 10,211,083 2,533,099
MM - 2E REMA Prepayments, deposits and other assets 648,467 67,224
e 7= Fixed assets 30,935 34,329
156 R I 5T = Deferred tax assets - 319
BRRAE™ Reinsurance assets - 164,616
BB Total assets 57,488,634 51,341,872
ffR LIABILITIES
KA B Interest payable 257,499 192,133
Lol =YNEIVES S Placements by subsidiary 44,000 -
RITRTL ~ A FF 52 &2 Accounts payable, accrued
HAth 5 expenses and other liabilities 4,604,471 5,362,257
TESHIA Derivative financial instruments 264,386 119,064
LHEABI IS 5 Current tax liabilities 87,226 116,288
15 TR I 52 Deferred tax liabilities 3,528 -
RBS 15 Insurance liabilities - 1,130,309
B RITRFIESH Debt securities issued 37,292,877 34,840,706
R EH Total liabilities 42,553,987 41,760,757
Nz EQUITY
NaEB AR GBRAR Capital and reserves attributable to
i the equity holders:
AR Share capital 7,000,000 2,000,000
{RER & Retained profits 35.2 7,937,098 5,693,762
MBS Contingency reserve 352 - 1,679,837
NTEER Fair value reserve 35.2 (2,451) 207,516
N S8 Total equity 14,934,647 9,581,115
AR RN S Total liabilities and equity 57,488,634 51,341,872
BEREF_E—NAENA=+HIER Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
EARFIAT © April 2019.
PRER Norman T. L. Chan £ Raymond L. C. Li
EITE#MTEE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director HMiTEEFZEF  Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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35.2 R ATHIEE 35.2 Reserves of the Company
REER RE#EE  ATERE
Retained Contingency Fair value =k |
profits reserve reserve Total
AT THAT THL AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E—-t&—-H-H As at 1 January 2017 4,822,686 1,739,389 82,320 6,644,395
AEREHN Profit for the year 811,524 - - 811,524
HiteHEEs Other comprehensive income:
AR EIFANATEES) Change in fair valug of
available-for-sale securities
— KRBz PR — net unrealised gains - - 191,162 191,162
— HENEI — realisation on disposal - - (83,161) (83,161)
— B — tax effect - - 17,195 17,195
AEELEE B Total comprehensive income
for the year 811,524 - 125,196 936,720
mARE AR E A Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
SR ZE 3 81H) 50% 5 75% risk premium earned from
A 2 A2
NS retained profits to
contingency reserve (200,730) 200,730 - -
AR R B 2R E R T Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits 260,282 (260,282) = =
FT=Z2-tH+=A=t+-H As at 31 December 2017 5693762 1,679,837 207,516 7,581,115
%émﬁiﬂﬁ%ﬁ%)ﬁm% 95 Changes on adoption of HKFRS 9
K22 200,511 - (202,799) (2,289)
F=%-)\f-5-A Restated balance as
ZENER at 1 January 2018 5,894,273 1,679,837 4717 7,578,827
KEFEH Profit for the year 362,988 - - 362,988
HieEla Other comprehensive income:
ARFEZHITARMLEEE  Change in the fair value of
(= N 7 R 7 ana
MRSIES AT ERA) debt securities at FVOC| - - (7,182) (7,182)
Dxﬁﬂ?fﬁfﬂtij)\ﬁmiiﬁ%lé Change in the loss allowance of
BIRSIES 5 Bk 2 %) debt securities at FVOC| £ B 14 14
AEELERE LN Total comprehensive income
for the year 362,988 - (7,168) 355,820
mIREEFEIRE RS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
Z\Kﬁ%ﬁiﬁg‘] 50% 3% 75% risk premium earned from retained
ENfEE profits to contingency reserve (63,784) 63,784 = =
HEBR RS Transfer of contingency reserve 1,743,621 (1,743,621) - -
F-E-)\E+=A=+-H As at 31 December 2018 7,937,098 - (2,451) 7,934,647
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36. EETS: » KHMELHH
EXAEXRR

HE-_FT - N\F+-A=+—BLFE
W - DEEND BT LA E BRI RAE
A=T77 WNARBLSEEERN  BFA
ENARRBEENALTHEAREERE (R
ECARIRPDE) EEFEEEXAZRE
AMEXRENEARS » ZHMEL -

37. BEMERE

EERT _ZE-NAFOA=THEEIEAM
SRR o

36.

37.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018, there
subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Company's business, to which any
member of the Group was a party, and in which any person who
was a director of the Company at any time during the year or a
connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
such person had, directly or indirectly, a material interest.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 30 April 2019.
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